# On Sacred Partnership



By Steve Beckow Editor-in-Chief Golden Age of Gaia

Vancouver: Golden Age of Gaia, 2017

#### **Table of Contents**

	Introduction	4
	What sacred partnership is	6
•	What is causing this sudden desire for change that so many are fe	eling? 6
•	What is sacred union?	6
•	What is sacred union and partnership all about?	7
•	Can you describe the new form of relationship?	8
•	What are the stages of sacred union?	9
•	What is the significance of sacred union with ourselves?	10
•	What does the balance of masculine and feminine look like in sac partnership?	red 10
•	What is a soul mate?	11
•	How does the soul group work?	12
•	What is the opportunity of sacred partnership at this time?	15
•	What does "complement" mean?	16
•	What is a "synchronistic mission"?	17
•	Does like-mindedness mean we share a synchronistic bond?	17
•	Is sacred partnership to be the rule or the exception in the times ahead?	18
•	What is the Plan for this ascension?	19
•	Is unity consciousness part of the ascension?	20
•	What does the Mother's Tsunami of Love bring?	21
•	What is the thinning of the veil bringing?	23
•	What will lightworkers be modelling through sacred partnership?	25
•	How does sacred partnership spread among lightworkers?	26
•	And I suppose then more and more people join the lightworker community?	26
•	What went wrong with relationships in the old Third Dimension?	26
•	What do people in "failed relationships" do?	29

•	What happens when we enter into sacred partnership?	30
•	What is key to making the new forms of love relationships work?	30
•	What is happening to our hearts?	33
•	How do we realize the heart as the true source of our love through sacred partnership?	า 34
	What Sacred Partnership Contributes	37
•	Sacred partnership seems to multiply my energy and effectivenes	s.37
•	Sacred partnership is sweet	38
•	Will Sacred Partnership Interfere with My Mission?	39
	Sacred Partnership with the Company of Heaven	39
•	How are we in sacred partnership with the Company of Heaven?	39
•	How do the celestials assist the Plan of sacred union?	42
	How do We Find Our Sacred Partner?	43
•	How do I know if sacred union is right for me?	43
•	I haven't met anyone to be in sacred partnership with.	45
•	How do we find our sacred partner?	45
•	What you are describing comes close to setting the intention.	47

#### Introduction

My studying sacred partnership arises from my desire to "get relationship right" this time.

It was written before I had the experience of merging with my Higher Self, my Seventh-Dimensional Oversoul. But even having had that experience, I still need to study this material carefully. I didn't suddenly become ... emotionally intelligent, overnight. I wish I did.

No relationship I've had in my life has lasted and I need look no further than myself for the reasons. Unresolved hostility has made me a handful for anyone I've related to. I need to end this now; hence this study.

It dovetails with a study of the universal laws and the divine qualities. My sacred partner, Kathleen Mary Willis, has shown me the efficacy of working with the universal laws. I'm more attentive to the Company of Heaven's philosophical discussions now than I was.

This study also takes into account the need to cleanse ourselves of burdensome vasanas, false grids, etc. In former times, enlightenment commentators spoke about a stage of purification. This is that stage, for us as a collective of lightworkers.

You could say that most of us lightworkers have been deconstructing our constructed selves (our masks, acts, numbers, etc.) for many years now and we're rebuilding our characters along divine lines.

I've been processing vasanas for a long time, but I'm learning from Kathleen to approach them from a fresh angle. Invoking the universal laws, apologizing, and forgiving are among the tools in her toolbox.

As for the role of sacred union in coming events, the Divine Mother has said that sacred union - drawing together in a manner that honours the Divine Plan and our plan - IS THE PLAN for Ascension.

Up till now, for many reasons, people here have been lost in separation consciousness, battling each other, oppressing whom they could, eliminating whom they couldn't suppress. World War II was only the most widespread conflict, but every conflict has been a catastrophe for the nations or people swept up in it.

After WWII, we built a business order that raised competition to the status of a natural law, calling it the survival of the fittest, with the weakest going to the wall. All of this has proven illusory, inconsistent with the true nature of Reality.

Now every strand of behaviour in us that arises from this matrix of entrenched beliefs has to go if we're to make a reasonably-smooth transition in consciousness and "go" as far as we can go.

Reality is cooperative; it shares freely. Reality is loving; it doesn't pit people against each other with the strongest prevailing and the weakest "going to the wall." Reality is selfless and serves the whole; it isn't fixated on looking out for Number One.

Here we explore sacred partnership. Sacred partnership is one form of sacred union.

We look at how to make sacred partnerships work and other basic topics in the creation, maintenance, and transformation of sacred partnerships. Not because I know but because I don't know and want to learn. I won't emerge an expert. I'll be learning every day. Change and learning are the only constants in my life.

I acknowledge my immense debt to my sacred partner and core-issues teacher, Kathleen, and to Linda Dillon for the wonderful body of guidance she's given the world through her channeled messages. I use them here with her permission.

I acknowledge Dana Zook for her transcriptions of much of the material here.

I acknowledge others who've been priceless sounding boards and beloved colleagues like Suzanne Maresca, Karen Wilson, Isaac Cubillos, Sue Lie, Sitara Williamson, and Janine Band. I also acknowledge those who've helped me have the time to write - Paul Backes, Angela Newbury, and Paula Turner. And colleagues Tiara and Sandra.

Finally I acknowledge my family - Paul, Fran, Tasha and Simon Beckow - who've seen me through thick and thin, without whom I don't think I ever would have made it to this point. Every day I risk and would never have had the courage to do it without you four.

# What sacred partnership is

# • What is causing this sudden desire for change that so many are feeling?

Matthew Ward: The prevailing vibrations ... are intensifying energetic differences and many individuals are feeling a strong desire to make a major change. Perhaps look for a different job, end a relationship or start one, pursue a new field of studies, relocate to an area you know or maybe a place you know of but never have visited.

We are not speaking about rashly acting upon an impulse, but rather heeding a growing sense of urgency to act upon an idea that has been simmering—this is the soul speaking increasingly loudly to the consciousness: This is what you chose in your soul contract. (Matthew's Message, July 4, 2013.)

#### What is sacred union?

Ashira: Sacred Union is a meeting of the Souls, and this is what you are truly beginning to experience in your own evolution on Earth. Before, you used to think – I do not mean you, sweet One – but you collectively often felt that Tantra was the highest form of prolonged union, or heightened ecstasy and union. Take it twenty-two steps further – it is a union of the heart, the mind, the body – and the Soul.

And when you are in that form of Union – not only is it profound joy – it can sustain you for thousands of years. When you join with another like this – and that is what we do – the bond very rarely can or would be severed.

Now, that does not mean that we do not acknowledge that people, individuals, will go off and have assignments and missions and things that they must attend to, but the bond, the Love, the Union – does not break. It is not a whim and it is not a one-time occurrence because we also come together again and again and again, and each time the Sacred Union is strengthened. It is completely by choice, and yet in so many ways when it is done and in place, it is so beyond choice. It is merely the way of the Universe of Love. ("Transcript: Heavenly Blessings ~ Commander Ashira on Galactic Life, March 18, 2014," at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/03/21/transcript-heavenly-blessings-commander-ashira-on-galactic-life-march-18-2014/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/03/21/transcript-heavenly-blessings-commander-ashira-on-galactic-life-march-18-2014/</a>.)

Ashira: There are many forms of Sacred Union and not all of them have been addressed, for there is a wealth of information. But what I wish to say as we begin today, there is the individual Sacred Union – soul to soul, heart to heart, person to person – but there is also Sacred Unions of Collectives – of heart promises, love and caring of Collectives – so we, we of the Unified Forces of the Outer Galaxies, and I do not mis-speak if I say that all of the various Commands hold this vision and this knowing, this commitment.

We are in Sacred Union with you – not only with each other, but with you – and particularly with you who are awake, who are aware not only of our presence but of our Love. To us, of course, always in honor to the Mother and to Universal Law which we will never break.

But what this Union means in a very practical sense is we tend to you, we tend to all of you, that is why right now we send you the Pink Light – Pink Cocoon. We do not betray you, we do not usurp your power, we honor you – we honor your brilliance, your Light, your commitment, your pathways. ("Transcript: Heavenly Blessings ~ Commander Ashira Returns for a Further Discussion on Galactic Life," channeled by Linda Dillon, March 25, 2014, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/03/30/transcript-heavenly-blessings-commander-ashira-returns-for-a-further-discussion-on-galactic-life-march-25-2014/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/03/30/transcript-heavenly-blessings-commander-ashira-returns-for-a-further-discussion-on-galactic-life-march-25-2014/</a>.)

Divine Mother: Your greatest desire is to be in union - with us, with your guides, with your beloved sacred union partner, and with each other. When you enter into unity consciousness - think of it as the implosion and explosion of heart consciousness - it is you surrendering and at the same time assuming responsibility for the truth and the totality of who you are, all aspects, all parts – integrated divinity.

In unity consciousness, the fear of not being unique and special disappears because the knowing, the wisdom, the sublime bliss of being love is enough to let down your barriers and joyfully, ecstatically, without defenses - without what you would call vasanas - to join in genuine cooperation, admiration of each other, of the uniqueness of your gifts, of the unique expression you have chosen, and I have chosen for you. And so this sense that if I conjoin I lose something is gone. ("Transcript of the Divine Mother: Density is Unloving Emotion; Love is Lightness of Being," March 6, 2015, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/03/06/transcript-of-the-divine-mother-density-is-unloving-emotion-love-is-lightness-of-being/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/03/06/transcript-of-the-divine-mother-density-is-unloving-emotion-love-is-lightness-of-being/</a>

# • What is sacred union and partnership all about?

Divine Mother: Surrender is what union and partnership is about.

In many ways, you meet your beloved and you do see each other because you have new eyes. ]

You have expanded, and for some of you it has been so gradual and so subtle you do not realize you have expanded. Nevertheless, it is true.

So, you recognize your beloved, and then you fall down on the ground in ecstasy, and you surrender. You surrender to the bliss and the wonder, not only that this is occurring, but that it is even possible.

And when you stand back up, when your beloved extends the hand to help you up, you are expanded even stronger, more fully, more capable to share this with friends, with family.

And the more you engage in this unity, not only do you create Nova Earth, but you are reflecting, you are behaving, you are having the experience of what it is to be divine. ("The Divine Mother: You Are Experiencing Love in Ways that You Have Not Known Before," channeled by Linda

Dillon, November 14, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/</a>.)

Sanat Kumara: Whether it is a love partner, a sacred union, a perfect family, or a gold coin, it is made of the essence of love. (Sanat Kumara through Linda Dillon "Sanat Kumara discusses the Universal Law of Attraction and Repulsion," June 16, 2013 at <a href="http://counciloflove.com/2013/06/sanat-kumara-discusses-the-universal-law-of-attraction-and-repulsion/">http://counciloflove.com/2013/06/sanat-kumara-discusses-the-universal-law-of-attraction-and-repulsion/</a>.)

Archangel Michael: The 'Divine Sovereign' relationship ... holds the highest consciousness and the most intense energy. This is where two partners are drawn together on the Soul level in order to express their inner Light and Radiance through relationship and partnership.

Both partners are fully balanced and sovereign within themselves and have created a loving primary relationship with their soul and higher self. This bond of love on the inner levels can then be reflected and manifested on the outer levels.

The two partners are capable of merging their soul energies in ecstatic soul union, but are also capable of being individual and whole within their own right.

They may work together, or they may choose to have a working life outside of the relationship. However they choose to express the partnership, it will create a field of Light and Radiance that will bring Joy and Healing to others through the very power of its reflection of the Divine Flame of Love and Compassion." (Archangel Michael: The Emergence of the Inner Warrior of Light - Standing in Power and Love and Being a Focus of Radiant Light for the Earth Transition - The Eclipses of October 2014," channeled by Celia Fenn, November, 2014 at <a href="http://www.starchildglobal.com">http://www.starchildglobal.com</a>.)

# • Can you describe the new form of relationship?

Archangel Michael: It is the form of sacred union and partnership where you truly come together, unique, individual, diverse. We are not trying to meld your hearts, your souls, your personalities, your talents, your abilities, but they tend to complement one another, and yes, at times and places to conjoin and to co-create. ...

Sacred union is one of truly engaging, not only in a relationship that is based on freedom, liberation, love — and that is where I have begun with you this day, of being love, loving, and being the love, being in love, allowing yourself to love, allowing yourself to be loved, to allow this love to spill from you to the collective, to utilize the energy of that love to create and to co-create both in the very large sense and in the very individual sense of your family. So it is a new level of participation, of being truly united in heart. It has not — well, it did in the very beginning, but — it has not existed, or it has existed by exception rather than the rule, since the demise of the third dimension. ...

In the beginning creator race came to the planet, this was the way in which sacred union worked.

Then came the false grids, the paradigms, the illusions, can we say the fall from grace, in many ways? ...

And so it is not that this type of union never existed on planet. It did here and there, now and then, but it most certainly was not the norm. It was not even truly even aspired to, because it was not conceived of....

One of the primary elements in the new form of partnership is not merely freedom, it is a sense of selflessness. And I use this word not to mean, in any way, shape or form, sacrifice.

But merely a sense of selflessness insofar... not that you lose yourself, but the importance of the soul as defined previously by ego disappears. And that is also part of the ascension, as you well know. ...

I am talking about being the truth of who you are. ...

It's not compromise. It is not settling. And so, yes, that is the new form, and that is what you are doing. So think of what you are involved in, if you so choose.

What you are doing is working or laying down the template. Because there are new forms, new patterns of behavior, of interaction, of being in partnership, of being in love. Now, the new form does not in any way eliminate what we would call the bliss and zing factors.

So we are not suggesting that in any way these are pushed to the side. They are not. (Archangel Michael in a personal reading with Archangel Michael, through Linda Dillon, May 28, 2014.)

# What are the stages of sacred union?

Divine Mother: After you have unified with your sacred self, you unify with us, because in our union there can be nothing but unconditional love, surrender, merger, conjoining, joy, bliss, excitement, peace — all of the desirable qualities that you yearn for. The mutuality. (The Divine Mother: My Desire is that Every Being on the Planet Falls in Love," channeled by Linda Dillon, Sept. 26, 2014, <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/10/03/divine-mother-my-desire-is-that-every-being-on-the-planet-falls-in-love">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/10/03/divine-mother-my-desire-is-that-every-being-on-the-planet-falls-in-love</a>.)

Maitreya: I eavesdrop, and I am present on Earth very often — and we will get to that — but I eavesdrop on many of your conversations. And I hear a consistency, not only among your InLight team, or not even amongst those seeking sacred union and forming it, and not only among the lightworker, love-holder community. There is a theme that is occurring right now, and it is human beings declaring, somewhat vehemently, that they will not settle, that they will not settle individually and collectively.

This is a declaration, a glimmer. It is not merely an expression of hope, of faith, of trust; it is a declaration of worth. It is a declaration that you, individually and collectively, know the work

you have done, know increasingly who you are and what your potential is, and that you will not settle for the illusion. You will not settle for second-best.

It is a declaration of deservingness, and it is a declaration that is the beginning point of your understanding, that you are here to create, to co-create with us and each other, and that you are here to experience joy in form, love in form, and that nothing else is sufficient. Nothing else is acceptable. Nothing else is good enough. ("Lord Maitreya: We Will Not Settle Any Longer - Part 2/2," channeled by Linda Dillon, March 13, 2014, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/03/28/lord-maitreya-we-will-not-settle-any-longer-part-22/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/03/28/lord-maitreya-we-will-not-settle-any-longer-part-22/</a>.)

#### What is the significance of sacred union with ourselves?

Archangel Gabrielle: That healing of what you call gender inequality, begins, my beloved ones, and ends with the internal balance of your sacred selves. It is part of that sacred union that you have with yourselves, and it is the full embrace, the love, the appreciation, the living in both sides and not creating cement walls or barriers between your masculine and feminine. It is the sheer joy of having both, regardless of what gender you have chosen...

When you do not have this sacred balance within your own being, how then, my beloveds, do you have that sacred partnership with the Mother/Father One/All/Source? ("Archangel Gabrielle: Gender Equality is Critical to Your Ascension," Aug. 13, 2014, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/08/13/archangel-gabrielle-gender-equality-is-critical-to-your-ascension/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/08/13/archangel-gabrielle-gender-equality-is-critical-to-your-ascension/</a>.)

Archangel Michael: Now, when we last have spoken, I also emphasized the beauty and the nature of the gift of the guardian angel, the guide, and how it is to your benefit to become intimately aware of it, and in a partnership, a co-creation, a sacred union with your guardian angels. Well, my beloved friends, I also say to you this night that it is equally important to become aware and in sacred union with your angelic self. So that is where I wish us to begin this conversation.

No, it is not difficult. Simply go into your heart and ask to see your angelic self and to come to know this part of who you are. It is equally important, if not even more so, than knowing your past lives, your galactic self, your inter-galactic self, various parts of you that are fairy or mineral or ocean. Know yourself. ("Archangel Michael: You are God Having an Experience of You," channeled by Linda Dillon, June 26, 2014, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/06/27/archangel-michael-you-are-god-having-an-experience-of-you.">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/06/27/archangel-michael-you-are-god-having-an-experience-of-you.</a>)

# What does the balance of masculine and feminine look like in sacred partnership?

Divine Mother: When you come into sacred union, you are both and you are all with what you would think of as primary energies.

When you are in sacred union — and it does not matter whether it is male-female, male-male, female-female, because what we are talking is energetics — there is the embodiment. For purposes of explanation, the masculine will tend to embody my energies, and vice versa, the feminine will merge and embody the Father.

But because there is no separation, it is not as pure or as delineated as one might think. There is the blend. And in that blend there is the time when the one that is holding the Divine Masculine will in fact hold the Divine Feminine, because that is what is required in the true union. And again, vice versa.

So there is this ebb and flow, the infinity, and you are meeting in the middle, in the still-point of creation, of the place of insemination, inspiration, implosion, explosion. And I have not even begun to speak of sexuality!

So, is it correct, what you say? Yes. But broaden it, my friends, my family. ("The Divine Mother: You Are Experiencing Love in Ways that You Have Not Known Before," channeled by Linda Dillon, November 14, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/</a>.)

Divine Mother: Think of it in this way. Most of you have had experiences of mothers. And there have been certainly a wide range and variety.

And there are some, when the saying would be that truly the mother is wearing the pants in the family. And that was a subtle recognition that, in fact, the feminine was carrying the masculine energy. But at the same time, you would see that feminine in all her feminine glory as well.

So it is the blend, because to be in sacred union, one of the keys, the elements, is this allowance. There have been references to the puzzle pieces fitting together, but think of those puzzle pieces as being fluid, as being water molecules that move and dance and transmute and transform, according to desire and need in its truest sense and what you are creating in that moment.

So, when you are truly in union, there is this allowance for adaptation. So, in some ways you become both male and female, and that is the celebration. That is part of the joy. Because it is in this recognition of both elements and the desire for both elements to be present... ("The Divine Mother: You Are Experiencing Love in Ways that You Have Not Known Before," channeled by Linda Dillon, November 14, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/</a>.)

#### What is a soul mate?

St. Germaine: In my belief the word and title of 'soul mate,' has been misinterpreted or maybe with the new unity consciousness anchoring into the understanding and realisations of all, the definition of a soul mate can now be brought into greater illumination and truth.

A soul mate may have been understood in the past as a soul from the same soul group as your own. All soul extensions from the same soul group hold the same vibration and their experiences, consciousness and wisdom is pooled together for all soul extensions to draw upon.

It is often that soul extensions from the same soul group do not incarnate together because they are profoundly crystal clear mirrors of each other. Also they wouldn't realise different information because they are drawing from the same pool of wisdom.

Often souls of the same soul group connect for short times in their incarnations to offer renewed consciousness, inspiration or awareness. While you will always see yourself in other soul extensions of the same soul group and experience a deep familiarity, you may actually experience deeper connections and memories when faced with a soul extension or aspect that is from another soul group. ...

A soul mate is a soul that wishes to travel with you through the journey of Earth and act as a mirror of your own energy while also inspiring and awakening new aspects of yourself. When you connect into and realise that every person and soul upon the Earth is an aspect of the Creator, you realise that there are multiple options and opportunities for linking and exchanging with a soul mate, a soul of similar vibration wishing to support your ascension and experience the unity of the Creator. ("Master Saint Germain: Soul Mates," channeled by Natalie Glasson, August 1, 2013 at <a href="http://omna.org">http://omna.org</a>.)

#### How does the soul group work?

SaLuSa: Some of you have incarnated together to carry out your life plan, and are working with soul mates who are very much of your own vibration. (SaLuSa, July 11, 2014.)

St. Germaine: Often soul groups work together through numerous lifetimes and so become deeply bonded, their energies interweaving upon the Earth and numerous higher frequency dimensions. The different soul groups can communicate and gain profound realisations through the interaction of their soul extensions on the Earth. This signifies that when you connect with a person on the Earth gaining the feeling that you are gazing upon yourself then it is most likely this person is a part of your soul group; therefore they are in many ways more a self or soul remembrance or source of inspiration than a mate.

If you were to connect with a person on the Earth feeling deep love, familiarity and numerous memories then it is most likely that this person is your soul mate, meaning your soul friend or travel partner.

To put it more correctly this person is an aspect of the soul group which is supporting your own soul group and with which you have a deep profound connection extending beyond the Earth and into the dimensions of greater unification.

When choosing or seeking a partner or friend do you wish to experience oneness and deep energy integration with an aspect of your own soul group which in many ways you are already exploring within your being or an aspect of another soul group which will awaken deeper wisdom from the Creator universe? ("Master Saint Germain: Soul Mates," channeled by Natalie Glasson, August 1, 2013 at http://omna.org.)

Hilarion: Many strands of personal destiny are coming into fruition and many are in completion. Look around you and see who it is who is still with you and know that these ones are able to work in unity with you in the increased energies. Their role in your lives is important or they would not still be with you.

It is time to view these individuals and their contribution to your personal growth with gratitude, even though they have most likely afforded you the most challenging situations to work through. It is not easy to take on these roles as challenger so that your soul purpose and growth can be initiated.

These ones have also chosen you to be a catalyst in their own growth and paradigm shifting and so you have offered each other the opportunities to look within your hearts at those areas in need of development that need to be brought out into the light of truth so that the appropriate changes can be initiated. (Hilarion, November 24, 2013.) Where does the journey of sacred partnership lead?

Divine Mother: You are experiencing love in ways you have not known before, and you have not known or experienced it to this extent because the frequency, the vibration was discordant. So you would catch glimpses and have minute — and I do mean minute — experiences of this heart fullness. And in that, you would say, "Yes, there it is. And I want more." And that has acted as a catalyst to move you forward.

Think of it in this way. There is a great deal of discussion, oh, with Sanat Kumara, with Yeshua, with Michael, about electromagnetic fields because it is a way for you to understand who you are and how you operate. But you do not tend to think of the greater universe of which you are an integral part as that electromagnetic field.

So, I wish you to think about something and to feel this in your heart as you are pulling us towards you and pulling the love, the knowledge, the joy, the fulfillment towards you, and in your electrical self climbing the spiral.

At the same time, we are magnetizing you to us, to all. And we are reaching to you so that this union not only can take place, that it does take place, and takes place not now and then, but constantly.

Because that is love. It has many faces and many forms, and many chapters, particularly in the definition and understanding of humanity. But the one thing about love is that it is constant. That is why so often I say to you, I am the Divine Mother, mother of constancy, mother of change, mother of consistency.

It is all. It ebbs, it flows, but it is constant, whether you choose — and we cannot fathom that you would not choose — love. So, when you do and as you do you are adding to the constancy of your very soul, of your essence, of your capacity to be in union with me.

The more that you are in union with me, with All, then it is quite literal. You are able to be in union with each other. And that is the purpose of existence. It is actually very simple. It is about the unity and the love. ("The Divine Mother: You Are Experiencing Love in Ways that You Have Not Known Before," channeled by Linda Dillon, November 14, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/</a>.)

Archangel Michael: The journey of union — and this is a preface to Ascension — the journey of union, just like the gift of clarity, is a precursor to and necessary for this forward thrust, for this final thrust, in many ways, at least in this phase, this chapter of Earth, of Gaia and of the Plan.

The first union is with your sacred self, adhering, embracing, and, yes, celebrating the totality of your being. Acknowledging it, reveling in it, and allowing it to expand even further is the first step. ...

And [the Mother's baptism of energies] has given you the clarity to know more fully who you are. But what it has also done is given you the clarity, the vision — although you do not necessarily have your third and fourth and fifth eyes fully open, you have the capacity (you're not quite sure at times how) — to recognize one another, and more importantly to see one another in the truth of who you really are.

And yes, this is happening at an unprecedented rate, and it is happening in terms of union of friendships, of groups, of what we would call partnerships or sacred unions. Even family members are beginning to recognize one another. But strangers across the lands, across the continents, are realizing, "I need to be working. I need to be talking. I need to be playing. I need to be in a form of relationship with that person," or with that group of people.

This is only going to intensify, because you are willing to stand there etherically naked and be seen. Because Earth and many of the illusions of your world — and I use world, not planet — has been perceived as so dangerous, many of you with good common sense remained hidden.

The time of hiding is over. When we have spoken to you, oh, now for several years, and certainly recently, we have emphasized not only the importance and the readiness but the imperative of stepping forward now.

And that is what you are doing. You are stepping forward into the light, into the dawn of a new time, a new realm, a new reality, a new dimension. And as you are stepping forward you are seeing each other. And you are seeing each other more clearly than you ever have before! And you are saying, "There you are!" And you are saying, not only "There you are," you are saying, "There you are! I love you."

You have no idea how long we have waited for this. No, we know this is not a platform for us to discuss the Mother's patience or ours, but you are not alone in knowing that this is the moment that you and we and your star brothers have been waiting for, for you to unabashadly say to each other, "I see you and I love you."

It is so simple, and yet it is what has been so sadly and desperately missing from Gaia in the human collective. You have had this belief that friendships or partnerships come and go, that love comes and goes. And that is erroneous. It is truly incorrect.

Now, how you relate to that love and the form that it takes is always a choice. Always a choice. And what is occurring, again with this rapidity, is the choice to step forward and say, "I will engage," and to be choosing to engage with those who have made the same decision and whose frequency is of a nature — not identical; none of you are identical — but of a frequency that is harmonious and allows that point of intersection, of conjunction and of union.

It is you, humanity, the collective, this rainbow collective, saying, "I will open my heart and see what happens. I am going to do this. I am going to throw away my false judgments of what has happened in the past, false history, and I am going to create, with clarity and a sense of purpose, based on the knowing of who I am, I am going to create new relationships, new partnerships, new friendships, and I am going to join and find and be with my soul family."

And we are going to play, we are going to laugh, we are going to work, we are going to cry, and we are going to continue on and create Nova Earth. ("Archangel Michael: I See You! I Love You! I Will Engage, Nov. 8, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/</a>.)

## What is the opportunity of sacred partnership at this time?

Archangel Michael: We have spoken to you previously about the opportunity to anchor into form and upon Nova Earth ... - whether you are angelic, archangelic, starseed; it matters not - ... the pattern of relationship of divine masculine/divine feminine.

Now we could make this incredibly complex but you know this is not a lesson in quantum physics. This is a conversation, a delightful conversation about love, about sacred union about the fulfilment of promise and about the anchoring of human potential of Nova Being as Nova Gaians. And what does this really mean?

We have spoken a great deal on this topic. It means, sweet angels, that you come from the heart. That you refer and you reflect your brilliant minds - yes, your emotional and your mental knowingness and history - but that you come from the place of heart consciousness that is expanded to such a degree that what human beings have termed, conflict, disagreement, even what we call growth opportunities, are but the chance, the open door to expand towards and with and into one another.

Never does this patterning in the divine masculine and feminine mean surrender of the self. If anything, it is the enormous, beautiful expansion of the self. Are there times of surrender to one another? Of course there are. That is the nature of unity. Not just relationship; I am speaking of unity.

And are there times of standing stalwart, of knowing the truth of what you hold near and dear as truth to your beingness? Yes, there are. Are there times when there are different perceptions or

experiences of this? Yes, of course there are. But that is the nature of conjoining and, might I ask, the willingness to complement one another, not simply to admire, to adore, to love but the willingness to complement.

#### What does "complement" mean?

AAM: Think of it in this way. I am the Archangel of Peace, the Warrior of Love and I have my mission and purpose and promises that I have made to the Mother, let us say before I get to return to my art and music; and I am sure before that she will have another task for me! But nevertheless....

What do I do? In everything I endeavor, whether it is in your terminology, thought or action, heart consciousness, love, I am but a complement to the Mother. That is the truth and purpose of every breath, every minuscule movement because that is the core of what you would think of or term my desires.

When one is truly in sacred union - and, concomitant to that, patterning in the divine feminine and masculine - what are you doing except complementing the Mother/Father One?

You are not merely emulating. You are inhabiting such a way of being that your totality, the wholeness, not just the composite parts, but the wholeness of your being is a complement to one another and, in turn, a complement to Mother/Father One.

So in this way, such things, such outmoded patterns as competition, as conflict, as disagreement in the old realm are not even possible because the totality of your being [is] as an individual to complement the Mother/Father but also to complement one another and thereby complement the Mother/Father.

So when I work with my beloved sister Gabrielle, we harmonize our energies. We complement one another although she always wants to take the lead! And in so doing we complement not only the Mother/Father but the One, the All, the Everything.

So that is what I mean. When you are taking action, let us be practical, does this grow, stretch, solidify, and harmonize the union? Harmonize the other in this union? Or does it detract? That is what I mean. (Archangel Michael in a personal reading with Steve Beckow through Linda Dillon, Sept. 30, 2015.)

Divine Mother: I have said several times to you that my desire and my design are that every human being upon the planet falls in love. Some of you jump to love. Some of you simply surrender to love. But we use this example of falling because it is falling into each other's arms the way you fall into my arms, the Father's arms, if you were to think of it that way. And why would you not?

So, by having continually, daily, hourly, this experience, this decision, this choice to acknowledge and engage in our divine union, it prepares you, sweet angels, for union with each other...

And you can create sacred union and bonding, unity consciousness — it matters not what you call it — this union with each other. You create it before you even engage, and your field is of such magnificence that others who are of like heart and like mind, like consciousness, are attracted to you. And then you say, "Well, Mother, I have seen that, but then their old issues or paradigms come to the forefront." That does not mean they are yours.

So send the energy and let the resolution and the resurrection take place. Hold the intention. Hold the space. Stand clearly in a willingness to engage in a higher level. And those people who are ready will come to you. And that, every time that happens, you are literally changing the collective. (The Divine Mother: My Desire is that Every Being on the Planet Falls in Love," channeled by Linda Dillon, Sept. 26, 2014, <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/10/03/divine-mother-my-desire-is-that-every-being-on-the-planet-falls-in-love">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/10/03/divine-mother-my-desire-is-that-every-being-on-the-planet-falls-in-love</a>

#### • What is a "synchronistic mission"?

The Arcturians: A "Synchronistic Mission" is when two or more people feel called to share their "mission to assist Gaia with Her Planetary Ascension."

These couples, or larger groups, were formed on the Starships before they took their present incarnation to Gaia. When it is the NOW for synchronistic mission to occur, they miraculously find and recognize each other and begin to bond their energy fields and conscious intentions.

Synchronistic Missions have a strong FEEL of Unconditional Love because this Unconditional Love creates a deep enough bonding to be assigned to, or choose to, have Synchronistic Missions. We do remind you that "unconditional love" is NOT a form of "romantic love."

However, romantic couples that are Twin Flames often take simultaneous incarnations so that they can fulfill this Mission together. On the other hand, Twin Flames may also choose to have one of them stay on the fifth dimensional Ship to assist [them] from there.

These Synchronistic Missions, which are very important for Planetary Ascension, are a major "Key to Ascension" in that they assist you to remember your INNATE ability to feel the opening of a Fifth Dimensional Portal.

Once you can "consciously" feel, see, hear, or sense that an inter-dimensional portal is opening, you can choose to consciously experience it. We say, "choose," because all of our Ascending Ones are choosing to increasingly perceive, open, and consciously feel their "CALL to Duty." ("The Arcturians: Perceiving the Unperceivable Part 1," July 8, 2017, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/07/08/the-arcturians-perceiving-the-unperceivable-part-1/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/07/08/the-arcturians-perceiving-the-unperceivable-part-1/</a>.)

### Does like-mindedness mean we share a synchronistic bond?

The Arcturians: There are many who are "like minded" but they do not share the same frequency rate of consciousness. Therefore, it could be difficult to create a synchronistic bond.

However, those who share this form of synchronistic bond may not feel a "deep link" between them. It is only through their higher frequency of perception that this deep link can be revealed. Fortunately, if at least one of the couple, or the group, opens their Mind to the NOW of the fifth dimensional portal, they can perceive the BOND between them.

The fifth dimensional portals, which are opening more and more each day, serve as a microscope to assist the Ascending Ones to "perceive the unperceivable." Since Synchronistic BONDS are best perceptible via fifth dimensional perceptions, those who recognize the flow of the fifth dimension into their daily life can best recognize what these BONDS represents.

They will instinctively know that this link between them can greatly assist with the merging of their higher states of consciousness. It is through merging with each other to create groups, that the Ascending Ones can work as ONE to open more and more fifth dimensional portals.

Once these Portals are opened, the higher frequency rate of the fifth dimension can move through the Portals and into the body of Gaia. Then the Ascending Ones can assist the flow of the fifth dimensional energy to flow into, and transmute "third fourth dimensional time and space" into the "the fifth dimensional HERE and NOW.

As this fifth dimensional energy flows into third/fourth Gaia, and all Her inhabitants, it will slowly transmute third dimensional time and space, as well as every embodiment the Ascending Ones have ever taken in all of their incarnations on Earth.

This fifth dimensional energy field greatly assists the ascending one to deeply bond with whomever, and whatever, they are sharing this merging. Through this merging of consciousness, you will find your self more able to identify an incarnation in which the two of you, OR the group of you, have served Gaia together.

This realization, will take you all into your shared incarnations to review, complete and learn from that group merging. If your group experience has left any fear, anger, sorrow, or imbalance that needs to be cleared from Gaia's Aura, it will become obvious. Therefore, via your collective consciousness, you will be able to "pick up where you left off" when you were still conscious and active within your personal and or group consciousness.

Many "old friends" are meeting up now in unusual and unexpected way. Their physical and astral self may not recognize each other, but their fifth energy field of NOW will instantly remember the FEEL of their group inter-dimensional experiences. ("The Arcturians: Perceiving the Unperceivable Part 1," July 8, 2017, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/07/08/the-arcturians-perceiving-the-unperceivable-part-1/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/07/08/the-arcturians-perceiving-the-unperceivable-part-1/</a>.)

# • Is sacred partnership to be the rule or the exception in the times ahead?

Divine Mother: Many of you, most of you will in fact be entering into a form of relationship because it is also part of the patterning and the design of Nova Being. There are a few who will wish to travel alone; it is not judged one way or the other, but the patterning by and large is to be in partnership of one sort or another. And there are many expressions of that; we do not mean it

[to be] gender specific. (Divine Mother, "Mother Mary Discusses the Divine Quality of Hopethe Foundation, the Bedrock of Human Existence," February 21, 2013, at <a href="http://counciloflove.com/2013/02/mother-mary-discusses-the-divine-quality-of-hope-the-foundation-the-bedrock-of-human-existence/">http://counciloflove.com/2013/02/mother-mary-discusses-the-divine-quality-of-hope-the-foundation-the-bedrock-of-human-existence/</a>.)

# **Sacred Partnership in Unity Consciousness is** the Plan

#### What is the Plan for this ascension?

Divine Mother: I have said several times to you that my desire and my design are that every human being upon the planet falls in love. Some of you jump to love. Some of you simply surrender to love. But we use this example of falling because it is falling into each other's arms the way you fall into my arms, the Father's arms, if you were to think of it that way. And why would you not?

So, by having continually, daily, hourly, this experience, this decision, this choice to acknowledge and engage in our divine union, it prepares you, sweet angels, for union with each other...

And you can create sacred union and bonding, unity consciousness — it matters not what you call it — this union with each other. You create it before you even engage, and your field is of such magnificence that others who are of like heart and like mind, like consciousness, are attracted to you. And then you say, "Well, Mother, I have seen that, but then their old issues or paradigms come to the forefront." That does not mean they are yours.

So send the energy and let the resolution and the resurrection take place. Hold the intention. Hold the space. Stand clearly in a willingness to engage in a higher level. And those people who are ready will come to you. And that, every time that happens, you are literally changing the collective. (The Divine Mother: My Desire is that Every Being on the Planet Falls in Love," channeled by Linda Dillon, Sep. 26, 2014, <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/10/03/divine-mother-my-desire-is-that-every-being-on-the-planet-falls-in-love">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/10/03/divine-mother-my-desire-is-that-every-being-on-the-planet-falls-in-love</a>.)

Divine Mother: How do you love the unknown stranger across the planet if you have not known any form of union with yourself and with your beloved?

For some — and I do mean a few — the beloved may be a friend or a child or a parent, but for most of you — and you are seeing this explosion — it is a divine partner. It is your sacred other that you choose and that you finally are seeing and recognizing, because you are seeing and recognizing and accepting and cherishing yourself.

So yes. It begins small and it continues to expand out. It is really a very simple plan. My plan is for the entire group of humanity to fall in love. And I do not mean in the old way, I mean in the

cherishing, the freedom, the liberation, the co-creation. And it begins two by two. ("The Divine Mother: You Are Experiencing Love in Ways that You Have Not Known Before," channeled by Linda Dillon, November 14, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/</a>.)

## • Is unity consciousness part of the ascension?

Divine Mother: Is unity consciousness part of the Ascension, an expression of the higher-dimensional realm? Absolutely. And it is an expression of joy. It is the relinquishing of struggle.

When I look at each of you and the struggle that you have to prove your worth, your power, your talent, your capacities, the fact that you are lovable and can be seen in this way, it is sad, because it is already there. So often you say, "Am I in my light body yet? Am I there yet, Mother?"

And there is a part of me within and without, inside you and far outside of you that has to smile gently and chuckle if I had such features, and I would say, "You have always been there." But it is the acknowledgment; it is that sense of surrender. It is that sense of being overjoyed that you are part of One. ("Transcript of the Divine Mother: Density is Unloving Emotion; Love is Lightness of Being," March 6, 2015, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/03/06/transcript-of-the-divine-mother-density-is-unloving-emotion-love-is-lightness-of-being/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/03/06/transcript-of-the-divine-mother-density-is-unloving-emotion-love-is-lightness-of-being/</a>.)

Divine Mother: The heart, the soul of your being yearns to be part of the collective. That is not herd mentality; that is joy-seeking, that is the acknowledgement of your Divinity in yourself and with another. As you are emerging into your sacred self in, shall we say, clearer balance of your Divine Masculine and Feminine, as that is occurring, sacred partnership, sacred unions are taking on the Divine Qualities. (Divine Mother, "Mother Mary Discusses the Divine Quality of Hopethe Foundation, the Bedrock of Human Existence," February 21, 2013, at <a href="http://counciloflove.com/2013/02/mother-mary-discusses-the-divine-quality-of-hope-the-foundation-the-bedrock-of-human-existance/">http://counciloflove.com/2013/02/mother-mary-discusses-the-divine-quality-of-hope-the-foundation-the-bedrock-of-human-existance/</a>.)

Divine Mother:" Many of you as children have been part of a team - either a team with your family, a team with your cohorts, or a team at school. When you are in a place of employment or work or volunteer activity, you desire to be part of a team. You seek out your soul family. That is what unity consciousness is - it is you acknowledging you are part of the team, you always have been.

And the team, sweet angels, and human, and starseed, and hybrids, pillars, wayshowers, and gatekeepers - you have always been part of the team - above and below. You made it. You made it before you even took form. You made it eons ago.

You cannot - and this is what the aberrant forget - you cannot order me out. You can try, and many have. You can say, "I'm going to ignore you." And many have tried, not one successfully. You cannot order me out. You can try and forget me. You can try and ignore me. But I am not going anywhere - I am part of who you are, your spiritual and your physical DNA.

Where do you really think the totality of your DNA comes from? It is not merely from what you think of as your parents. It comes from your parents all right. It comes from us [Divine Mother and Holy Father. ("Transcript of the Divine Mother: Density is Unloving Emotion; Love is Lightness of Being," March 6, 2015, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/03/06/transcript-of-the-divine-mother-density-is-unloving-emotion-love-is-lightness-of-being/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/03/06/transcript-of-the-divine-mother-density-is-unloving-emotion-love-is-lightness-of-being/</a>.)

The Mother says, "How do you want to experience Love in form?" "Oh, I want to go to Earth and see what that's like." And she says to you, "Oh good, because I have a huge project down there. What I'm doing is re-anchoring the original Plan for Gaia and we want Love. We want this planet to be the entire planet of Love. We want it to be a sister to Venus, only far more physical. We want physical Cities of Light. We want physical reality of Sacred Union and Partnership. We want physical reality of the expression and experience of Love." ...

And it is done in the Pattern of the Universe, and it is being done because humanity, the collective and each of you, my beloved family, are at a point where you are ready to do this, where you are ready not only to know the Joy but to be the Joy, to be the Love, because that is what this Ascension is about. ("Jesus Sananda ~ Be Love, Know Love, Express Love and Be In Infinite Joy," March 15, 2016, at <a href="http://www.lovehaswon.org/ascended-master-teachings/2016/3/15/sananda-be-love-know-love-express-love-and-be-in-infinite-joy">http://www.lovehaswon.org/ascended-master-teachings/2016/3/15/sananda-be-love-know-love-express-love-and-be-in-infinite-joy</a>.) What is unity consciousness?

#### • What does the Mother's Tsunami of Love bring?

Divine Mother: This Tsunami of Love is a sacred undertaking based on [your] sacred partnership with your Mother. (The Divine Mother: My Desire is that Every Being on the Planet Falls in Love," channeled by Linda Dillon, Sept. 26, 2014, <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/10/03/divine-mother-my-desire-is-that-every-being-on-the-planet-falls-in-love">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/10/03/divine-mother-my-desire-is-that-every-being-on-the-planet-falls-in-love</a>.)

Jesus: I come to speak to you about Sacred Union, about the sacred union with your divine self, with your beloved one, with your sacred partner, and with each other, and with the planet herself.

The Tsunami of Love that the Mother is washing you with, day, night, and in-between is preparing you for this sacred union. In many ways it is the baptism before the marriage; it is the cleansing before the full union. You are ready to fulfill your desire to unite, but as one who has walked, yes, in favored position, perhaps more knowing than many, but also fully as man, as human, you are prepared to love yourself.

The Mother's love washing within you, cleansing you, integrating, anchoring, what does this do? Aside from washing away the horrific debris, what is the end result of the Mother's tsunami?

It is that you are fully prepared, you are in a state of grace to enter into union with yourself. To love and cherish and honor and admire and commit and fulfill your dreams, your mission and purpose, your desired creations right now, not next year, not next month, right now.

You are prepared to enter into union with your twin flame, with your circle, with the Council, with your star brothers and sisters, with the entire human race.

Now, are some still being washed by the tsunami? Yes, and we say it is about to intensify, so get ready! But you are holding the ground and what are you doing? You are taking it to the next step, the next level.

And I am there with my arms flung wide open; so is my beloved Magdalena. It is time, not only for sacred union with yourself, but reunion with us. I do not just refer to our Annual Gathering; I refer to today, tomorrow, the weeks to come. Let us begin. Why should love have to wait any longer? Why would you choose to wait any longer?

Everything, your design, your heart, your tri-flame, your grid, Gaia's grid, our grid, we are in harmony and alignment. What is the next step after alignment? It is what I speak of: Sacred Union.

I invite you, I welcome you, come, preparation is over, no more excuses, no more false grids, no more false ideation. Embrace your perfection in what you have so often judged as your imperfection. Let us grace each other and join our hearts as one. ("Sacred Union: Yeshua Asks, 'Why Should I Have to Wait Any Longer?'," channeled by Linda Dillon, Aug. 2, 2014, at <a href="http://counciloflove.com/2014/08/sacred-union-yeshua-asks-why-should-love-have-to-wait-any-longer/">http://counciloflove.com/2014/08/sacred-union-yeshua-asks-why-should-love-have-to-wait-any-longer/</a>.)

Divine Mother: As you ... receive the gifts, the energy, the love that we send you through divine movement, that others send you from the various realms of existence, and the many realms and dimensions, you are able not only to join with yourself, but with us and with each other.

You are recognizing the pattern of genuine relationship, and what that looks and feels like in this gift not only of heart consciousness and inter-dimensionality, but physicality as well. As you rise, you are more able to clearly grasp not only the idea or the concept, the construct of creation in its fullest sense, but you are able to join with us.

Is this part of the plan? Dear hearts, it is the plan. There are many details, many aspects, many attunements, but the plan has always been one of union and reunion. And you have known this in your basic understanding of your spiritual journey, your spiritual journey back to us, back to One, back to Source, however you have defined it. ("The Divine Mother: You Are Experiencing Love in Ways that You Have Not Known Before," channeled by Linda Dillon, November 14, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/</a>.)

Archangel Gabrielle: Our beloved Mother, that goes by many names and many faces - but there is only One - speaks to us of the Tsunami of Love and do you know, dear heart, I am known as Central Administrator, but I am also known as the Communicator, the Announcer, and I bring my Trumpet of Truth this day. And I blow this horn from the four corners of the universe, no, not merely Gaia, and it is not to announce the end of the Earth, but to announce the New Beginning. It is to announce recovery, rediscovery. It is to announce sacred union. It is to announce the Tsunami of Love, which begins.

Anchor yourselves firmly my children because you are the breakwater and you are the circle that can play and ride the waves of the tsunami and to show the collective that there is nothing to be fearful of. How can one fear Love, let alone the Mother's Love?

It is upon you. It does begin. Anchor yourself deeply within the heart of Gaia and anchor yourself in the 13th Octave and become the screen through which all light, all love, all energy passes, that you may be washed clean and that you will do so, also, on behalf of billions. The bath needs to take place. There is too much residue and you, not merely you who listen to this call this day, but you, the human race, the collective of humanity, of earth-keepers and starseeds and hybrids, you have announced yourself as ready, willing, able, prepared and eager to go forward.

We take you the way you are. We wash away pain and suffering, physical, mental, emotional, spiritual, but particularly, the first relief you will feel is the physical. You will feel buoyant in the waves.

Go to the seashore, go to the mountain tops, go to your back yard, go to your bedroom, it matters not, the tsunami will find you. And it is not merely a cleansing, it leaves behind the imprint, the residue of love that it will fuel you, support you, integrate you and help you make that quantum leap, individually and collectively.

Beloved ones, the time is now. Your star brothers and sisters are amongst you. Look not only to the skies but to each other; look to the ground, look to the treetops. Prepare yourself to receive the abundance of your birthright. The time is now.

Go in peace, go in joyous celebration, go in deep gratitude, go and play with the fairies, my dear hearts. You are blessed and you are the blessing. Farewell. ("Archangel Gabrielle Announces the New Beginning," channeled by Linda Dillon, April 19, 2014, at <a href="http://counciloflove.com/2014/04/archangel-gabrielle-announces-the-new-beginning/">http://counciloflove.com/2014/04/archangel-gabrielle-announces-the-new-beginning/</a>.)

# • What is the thinning of the veil bringing?

Council of Nine: With the thinning of the veil comes the reunification with those with whom you share a bond. For some, especially those who have come to know themselves as starseeds, it is the realization that you may have shared lives within the same planetary system, whether it be Sirius, the Pleiades or an altogether different one.

For others, it is the realization that a part of you, a Higher Self, is currently living in another system of worlds altogether... and you are beginning to tune in to their life and they are becoming aware of yours. Or you may tune into a high frequency angelic being, an elemental being or even a planetary being that is still you!

Your other "selves" may not have been involved in your soul development for a long time, but when the lower frequency portion of the soul approaches the vibratory level of the Higher Self then things begin to get interesting. Much knowledge and wisdom begins to be shared, whether through meditation, channeling with Higher Self or through the avenue of information presented

through others, soul friends whom you meet along the way Home. What is being shared is being done so for the benefit of your soul extension's process of reconnecting with the Whole...

As you approach the mid and higher levels of initiation you WILL make contact with your Higher Self and with those who are soul family, whether on GAIA or in other worlds. It is an inevitable part of soul expansion... your consciousness recombining with what has always existed, the greater YOU that you left behind when incarnating on a lower frequency planet. ("The Council of Nine: On Expansion of Self-Awareness," channeled by Eliza Ayres [aka Tazjima Amariah Kumara], May 17, 2014 at http://bluedragonjournal.com.)

#### • Where is sacred partnership heading?

Archangel Michael: You are recognizing that there is a heart desire that you may not have even recognized before, because you kept those pieces of yourselves hidden, that you are allowing to come to the forefront and can I be so romantic as to say, fall in love? There is nothing above or below that is more wondrous, more joyful than the expansion of love. And how this is happening is in the recognition of sacred partners.

In very sometimes unusual circumstances — and they are going to become even more unusual as your star brothers and sisters appear, because you have allowed the truth of your multidimensional, hybrid self to come forward. You are seeing your mission and purpose and you are understanding that not only can it not be completed in isolation; it is not desirable. It goes back to that expression of joy, to that experience of joy, to that yearning for joy.

So there is this clarity about wanting to create and to co-create, first and foremost, union with another. And so, one of the first parts of these new forms, shall we say, of union is coming together and understanding through standing etherically naked [at] the points of conjunction on which you come together. Where do you mesh?

Where do you unify in joint forces to achieve something, tangible or intangible? Where do you act as a support mechanism, and the lead mechanism, to achieve something? How do you come together where two have always been much stronger than one? Even to start with you are four, and then more. [Two twin flames plus the Mother and Father God. Then children.]

So it is more mission-driven than simply an ideation of what a partnership or a marriage is about. ("Archangel Michael: I See You! I Love You! I Will Engage, Nov. 8, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/</a>.)

Archangel Michael: These unions do not require a set form. And that is new. It is original. It is how it is on this side. It is how it was in the very beginning.

But there is a decision between the two souls on that form, depending on what you are working on, what you are achieving, what you are dreaming, what you are creating, how you are playing. And then the form follows the creation and the desire, rather than setting the form and then making everything fit the form. That is how you ended up with institutions that don't work. So, you aren't repeating that error. You have grown.

And the form that these partnerships will take, or can take, by choice, will shift and morph, again, depending on what you are dreaming, what you are desiring.

But the key to this is freedom, complete liberation, and the acknowledgment, not in lip service, but on the deepest soul level, of the freedom of the person that you are joining with the sanctity — yes, the sanctity! — of their path, of their choices, of their desires, of their decisions. So there is no push and pull. It is the ebb and flow. It is the infinity. It is the tide. ("Archangel Michael: I See You! I Love You! I Will Engage, Nov. 8, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/</a>.)

Archangel Michael: The conditions, the environment, the situations have changed. Now, there are very few of you — and I do mean that, very few of you, even those of you who have most ardently declared your desire in the past, in the old realm, to be alone — there are very few of you who truly, in the new energy, wish to proceed alone. And I do mean that in terms of having a sacred partner.

And yes, the energy with which the sacred partnerships are being infused is dramatically different — and I do not mean drama in the negative sense; I mean it in the most uplifting opera you can imagine; they are very different.

Too often before, relationship has been based on a form of need or control. And I do not say that in a negative way. It is simply where many relationships were. I do not mean all. But even those who have been together for 50 years are finding that their relationship is taking a turn. ("Archangel Michael: I See You! I Love You! I Will Engage, Nov. 8, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/</a>.)

# • What will lightworkers be modelling through sacred partnership?

Archangel Michael: [What the new sacred partners will be doing] is that you are modeling what we would call the Nova Being form of sacred union, of partnership. It is partnership in the new realm.

And it is partnership that is based on a full recognition - emphasis on full. Not just recognition but full recognition - of each other.

And each other within the context of your individual plans, your own designs, your own missions, your own desires, and your joint missions and desires.

But it also showing how you can be demonstrating, how you can be in sacred partnership and work together, be together, live together, create together. And not to the exclusion of community. (Archangel Michael in a personal reading with Steve Beckow through Linda Dillon, Nov. 19, 2013.)

#### How does sacred partnership spread among lightworkers?

Archangel Michael: We are in this sacred partnership. Are we in partnership with every being on the planet? Yes. But it is difficult when you are in a partnership and the other person does not realize it. So we are working with those who realize we are in partnership. And so that is why we are having these conversations.

So, does the conversation expand organically and naturally? Does the energy go out to the entire planet, those who want to hear and those who don't want to hear? Yes, it does. But it begins with the lightworker community. That is what we have need of.

# And I suppose then more and more people join the lightworker community?

Archangel Michael: Exactly, until it is one family and one path. ("Archangel Michael: A Global Reset of Values, Part 2/2, " channeled by Linda Dillon, September 16, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/09/archangel-michael-a-global-reset-of-values-part-22/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/09/archangel-michael-a-global-reset-of-values-part-22/</a>.)

Jesus: Look how so many of you are engaging not only in the sacred partnership with us, with your sacred self, but with your divine partners, with your family, with your parents, with your children, with your siblings, and with your soul family.

You are declaring yourself, and what you are doing is monumental. And you are saying, "I choose a world, a reality, which is the full experience available to humanity." And the construct — the fibers, the molecules, the subatomic particles, all of it that we have spoken of time and time again — the building blocks are love. And you are declaring that and you are saying, "I deserve, I welcome, and I am love." ("Jesus: You are Love. It is All You Have Ever Been," channeled by Linda Dillon, December 18, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/12/jesus-you-are-love-it-is-all-you-have-ever-been/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/12/jesus-you-are-love-it-is-all-you-have-ever-been/</a>.)

# How Do We Make Sacred Partnership Work?

### • What went wrong with relationships in the old Third Dimension?

Archangel Michael: Your experience in the old Third — and I do not wish to be judgmental; this is merely a statement of fact — the experience and the way of operating, and the reason why sacred union has been so rare, is that it was based on push and pull. It was based on a feeling of compromise in the worst sense of the word.

Compromise is a wonderful word, but not in the sense that you have known it. How can you possibly have freedom, liberation, when someone is telling you, above, below, or in between,

what to do or how to do it? How can anyone, outside of your beloved sacred self, demand or determine how you go about your sacred journey?

The entire purpose of sacred union is exchange, support, the experience of love without shackles, the complementarity. And that is why, so often, we have used the visual of puzzle pieces interlocking at one or two points of conjuncture, but not engulfing one another, allowing for the expansiveness.

How can you be a ballet dancer if your arms are tied, if your feet are tied? How can your love flow out of your heart, not only to your sacred other, but to them and through them and with them to your community, to your family, to your planet, to your brothers and sisters of the stars, if they are impeded?

In the old Third, you are intergalactic experts at conditional love. And that is quite a feat. And it is, "I will love you if...." "I will love you, but...." You will never hear that from us. And as you are moving to the Fifth, you will never hear it from yourself or from each other.

Now, Gaia is on the move again — yes, news of the day. And you are on the move again. And this is part of what we have spoken of in terms of your Ascension process. But it is being in the flow, and you cannot determine how to be in the flow, because it is new behavior, on every level.

But you cannot be in that flow if you are not in the flow with your sacred self. When we have spoken of sacred union, we have repeatedly said the first relationship is with your sweet self, and to be and to know — maybe not everything, but to respect that each of you has an ebb and flow.

And you know this spiritually, you know this physically — that there are days when you are full of vim and vigor, and there are days where you wish to be more quiet, reflective. There are days emotionally where you are wide open with yourself and everyone you meet, and then there are days when you wish to travel more deeply within.

There are days when you are razor sharp mentally, where you wish to engage in intellectual or cutting edge conversation, and then there are days when you would like to simply curl up with a good novel.

You have your ebb and flow. So, yes, liberation.

We have given you so many different formulas, and certainly Linda and Graham have spent a great deal of time with InLight Radio discussing creation formulas, etc. But think of this formula. Love... and rather than an equal sign place the infinity sign, that sideways 8, and see it as an = Love  $\infty$  liberation.

Post it on your wall. Post it on your forehead. Post it on your website, because that's what it is. You cannot say that you are engaging, truly, in love with yourself or love with another if you are using the words should, ought, need. It doesn't work. ("Archangel Michael: Go with the Ebb and the Flow of Love," channeled by Linda Dillon, April 3, 2014, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/04/05/archangel-michael-go-with-the-ebb-and-the-flow-of-love/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/04/05/archangel-michael-go-with-the-ebb-and-the-flow-of-love/</a>.)

Angelic Guides: Humans very often place conditions on what love can be, never realizing that true love is unconditional. It cannot be taken away, nor can true love be removed based on circumstances or situations.

From our perspective, unconditional love can be experienced between everyone. We do not have "rules" about who can experience love; a man and a woman, a man and a man and a woman and a woman all can share love. Where there is love, there is compassion for another even if that other is seen as different.

Many curiously request us to share our perspective on topics such as same-gender marriage, inter-racial marriage, and various other topics concerning love. To this we smile as we are always happy to share our perspective, yet many are surprised to learn that we simply view love as limitless. This is why we have titled this message as "Love knows no boundaries"...

Your souls are not male or female; rather they are both. Your souls are not indigenous to one region on your world or another, nor are they a skin color or religion. Also remember that we view all lives as happening simultaneously and therefore you are both male and female in numerous lives. Your souls do not have a gender. ("Angelic Guides: Love Knows No Boundaries,' channeled through Taryn Crimi, July 12, 2013 at <a href="http://angelicguides.wordpress.com">http://angelicguides.wordpress.com</a>.)

Divine Mother: What has been absent in many human relationships is the unconditional support. And I hear it all the time "Well I'm sorry, I can't support you in that." And I hear that and I wonder why? Child, do you think there is anything that you bring to me and I say I can't support you in that?

I have said all prayers are heeded and answered, perhaps not in the way that you thought, but nevertheless they are answered; they are responded to. So when someone says "I cannot support you" it is a very curious lack of love. I may not agree with you. I may not understand. I may not have the same vision or understanding of the picture but I support you unconditionally. And if you are mis-stepping, I will hold your hand while you rearrange and rebalance.

This is a very important quality of new relationships. It is the removal of condition; it is the removal of 'I will love you if.' The 'if' is gone, the 'but' is gone, and the flow is eternal. That is what change is.

And when you support and when you come in union with a friend or your Divine other, this is how you will experience it. So it is very different than the paradigm of relationships that has been present here-to-fore on earth. Think of it as Gaia, she has never said to you "Well I will support you and let you stay on my planet if you do not sully my face." No, she has always supported you. (Divine Mother, "Mother Mary Discusses the Divine Quality of Hope-the Foundation, the Bedrock of Human Existence," February 21, 2013, at <a href="http://counciloflove.com/2013/02/mother-mary-discusses-the-divine-quality-of-hope-the-foundation-the-bedrock-of-human-existance/">http://counciloflove.com/2013/02/mother-mary-discusses-the-divine-quality-of-hope-the-foundation-the-bedrock-of-human-existance/</a>.)

Archangel Michael: What has often happened in the past is that there have been extremes. There are couples who can co-exist - and I use that word because it is not peaceful co-existence in my

sense of peace, in the Mother's sense of peace. But they believe that they live in peaceful coexistence as long as they don't have to be together twenty-four hours a day.

Now we are not suggesting that anybody needs to be with anybody twenty-four hours a day. But what the new realm suggests is that you can be - two hours, twenty-four hours, it matters not.

Then there are others that say, well, we can be together and we can work and we can play together but it is to the exclusion of others. It is to the exclusion of working with a team, working with a community, with the globe, with the collective. (Archangel Michael in a personal reading with Steve Beckow through Linda Dillon, Nov. 19, 2013.)

# What do people in "failed relationships" do?

Jesus: Those in "failed" relationships, although consumed with bitterness for each other, do love their progeny and want the best for them. Their concept of what is best for them may be faulty, but the intent is loving. And truly there are no "failed" relationships because every relationship is a mutually chosen series of lessons which all those involved chose to undertake – lessons largely in the futility of resentment and blame.

When a choice is made by either partner to see anger, bitterness, and attack as a call for love, the relationship changes – maybe improving, or maybe showing one of the partners that it is time to move on peaceably and calmly, thus freeing both...

Those presently embroiled in such [co-dependent] relationships are finding them increasingly untenable, unacceptable, and unworkable as their awareness grows of what it is they are doing to themselves and to the other. This is an indication of Love seeping in where previously it was locked out. Love frees, It brings awareness, It never forces an entry, controls or manipulates, and as the divine love field enveloping the planet strengthens so does its influence, bringing a realization to even the most hurt and damaged among you that they have a right to Love.

They demonstrate this by taking the first steps to disengage from relationships which they feel are destroying them. When this occurs they need tremendous amounts of loving support and understanding, not judgments that suggest that they are to blame for the situation, nor even partially to blame, just loving support where they can find peace and acceptance to enable them to come to terms with what is happening.

They are seeking Love. It is within them, as It is within everyone, but they need help to find It because It has been hidden from them for far too long, under the pain and grief that they have been enduring, and they have no memory of It. Your acceptance of them demonstrates Love in action and helps them to find It within themselves, enabling them to offer It back to you in thanks and appreciation. Maybe it is their first experience of Love, kindling within them a sense that if they can give It they must indeed have It, and a feeling of peace comes over them. Your offering of Love to others is powerful! Even when done silently and unobtrusively. Use that power frequently during the day – and change the world! (Jesus through John Smallman, May 24, 2013.)

#### What happens when we enter into sacred partnership?

St, Germaine: The greatest wish of the soul is to experience the divine flow of the Creator; to receive and give the vibrations of the Creator. When another soul is present, then the soul can truly begin to experience the giving and receiving of divine Creator love, qualities and self-recognition.

Through the experience of the soul being in harmony and balance with another soul, both souls can escalate their experiences of the Creator acting as an amplifier of the divine within. Although the escalating of two souls can be intensified through romantic relationships the same can be achieved in connections of divine friendship and support. I am wishing to express to you the notion that any appropriate soul, guided by your soul, their soul and the Creator can act as a mate, mirror and amplifier for your soul to aid further growth. ("Master Saint Germain: Soul Mates," channeled by Natalie Glasson, August 1, 2013 at <a href="http://omna.org">http://omna.org</a>.)

#### What is key to making the new forms of love relationships work?

Archangel Michael: The key to [making sacred partnership work] is freedom, complete liberation, and the acknowledgment, not in lip service, but on the deepest soul level, of the freedom of the person that you are joining with the sanctity — yes, the sanctity! — of their path, of their choices, of their desires, of their decisions. So there is no push and pull. It is the ebb and flow. It is the infinity. It is the tide. ("Archangel Michael: I See You! I Love You! I Will Engage," Nov. 8, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/08/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/08/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/</a>.)

The crux of the new sacred union energy — and I am pleading with you, because this is a sacred beginning for all of you, whether you think that you are in sacred union now or not — this is the new way. It's freedom and liberation and it is love. And it is the freedom to say to each other, "Is this love? Are these words love?"

"Are these actions love? Are these feelings love? Are they the demonstration of purity and clarity? Do they lift me up, even when I am looking at something that perhaps I have avoided, or evaded? Does it lift me? Does it liberate me because I am free to look at this not in a threatening manner, not in a way of punishment and brimstone, but because I am cared for and cherished and seen for who I really am?"

This is a reflection. It is the anchoring — you have that expression, "Heaven on Earth"? — it is the anchoring of how union works, certainly on our side, buft certainly in the higher dimensions and in the more evolved civilizations. ("Archangel Michael: I See You! I Love You! I Will Engage, Nov. 8, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/</a>.)

Divine Mother: But [the key for the new form of love relationships is that it] does not include judgment but it includes awe, admiration, appreciation, gratitude, spaciousness. This is something that is often absent in many relationships that we observe. It is not ownership to be in

partnership and there has need to be the room between you, each to do what you are destined to do, what you choose to do, and what brings you joy and then to bring that back.

So there are things that you will create and co-create together and then there are things, it is important, to do by your sacred self and then bring it, the way a child brings the drawing to their mother and it is celebrated and valued and cherished. (Divine Mother, "Mother Mary Discusses the Divine Quality of Hope-the Foundation, the Bedrock of Human Existence," February 21, 2013, at <a href="http://counciloflove.com/2013/02/mother-mary-discusses-the-divine-quality-of-hope-the-foundation-the-bedrock-of-human-existance/">http://counciloflove.com/2013/02/mother-mary-discusses-the-divine-quality-of-hope-the-foundation-the-bedrock-of-human-existance/</a>.)

Lord Maitreya: [Sacred partnership] is what your heart most yearns for. And the first sacred partnership is with your beloved self, is with that balance of your masculine and feminine divinity within. But yes, this is not the 1950s...

The way in which the divine partnerships, the sacred unions, are forming, are taking new roles, new positions, new forms — and some are friendships that have nothing to do with being in a partnership or a spousal relationship; some are spousal, and I use that term in terms of union, not only sexual, but heart and mind; some are coming together, as you say, for sacred purpose, but — these unions, these partnerships that are being formed, that people are being swept into, often unexpected, yearned-for but unexpected, are powerful, with purpose, with meaning, with mission, and a gift. It is a way in which you experience not only a sacred other, but the divine, and yourself.

Now, previously, this level of intimacy was only experienced freely when two twin flames incarnated together. And it is the most blissful and the most challenging. Now, what is occurring is this depth of love, of truly seeing the other person and truly seeing yourself, and then seeing yourself through someone else's eyes, and seeing someone else through the different eyes.

It is that microcosm that I have begun speaking of this night. It is that micro-level of what is occurring in these sacred unions that is a reflection of what you are building in terms of community and in terms of Nova Earth. The Mother has said to you, "I want you all to fall in love with each other." Let us begin. ("Lord Maitreya: We Will Not Settle Any Longer - Part 2/2," channeled by Linda Dillon, March 13, 2014, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/03/28/lord-maitreya-we-will-not-settle-any-longer-part-22/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/03/28/lord-maitreya-we-will-not-settle-any-longer-part-22/</a>.)

Archangel Michael: You are starting to learn about how to play with this, so that you can slide along that grid and enter into another's sacred space, your sacred partner's space. And similarly you can allow them to slide into yours.

You do meld in a very new and different way, because the fear element is going. And then you take each other's hands and hearts and you travel throughout the universe. You multi-locate to whatever planet or dimension you want to explore.

You play. Because that feeds your creation and your cre How do we live sacred partnership? ativity. You don't put parameters around what is possible with your sacred union. And there is a willingness, a determination, a drive to explore it all.

It is what the Mother had in mind when she created this movement, this attraction of one to another. It is a gift, and it is beautiful. So, do not resist, my friends. Allow this beautiful dance to begin. ("Archangel Michael: I See You! I Love You! I Will Engage, Nov. 8, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/</a>.)

Mary Magdalene: How do you live it? How do you breathe it? How do you inhale it and exhale it and sleep with it? It is not that Yeshua and I never had differences of opinions, we were both very strong beings, and we still are, each with our own sacred path. But the union of those paths and the unions of our hearts overrode any petty disagreements or different opinions on how best to proceed.

Our agreement, our human and our soul agreement, was that we would discuss, we would talk, telepathically and physically, about small and large things.

Our agreement was our promise to Love, comfort and support one another; that we would appreciate and express our gratitude in a multitude of ways every day by sharing. And that if there were situations where one of us felt the Divine guidance to take a certain action, that we would honor each other's choice, that decision, that need, that soul's priority, even if we did not like it, even if we knew the consequence might be painful; because the honoring of each other and the honoring of our paths and choices was more important than avoiding outcomes that we might not like.

Because Yeshua and I knew the unfoldment that lay ahead of us, it assisted us and encouraged us to truly live in the moment, in the now that we had together. ("The Magdalena on the Nature of Sacred Partnerships," channeled by Linda Dillon, August 10, 2014, at <a href="http://counciloflove.com/2014/08/the-magdalena-on-the-nature-of-sacred-partnership/">http://counciloflove.com/2014/08/the-magdalena-on-the-nature-of-sacred-partnership/</a>.)

Jesus: That is what Relationship is about. That is what Love is about. It is loving you and honoring you enough to heed your desires and wishes, to help in every which way we can or are capable of, to love you no matter what, to be vigilant and wait, and assist how, where, when, and in every way we can.

It is to love you enough to be in sacred partnership with you, with each of you. ("Transcript: Yeshua Discusses Relationships on Heavenly Blessings," channeled by Linda Dillon, February 4, 2014, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/02/transcript-yeshua-discusses-relationships-on-heavenly-blessings-february-4-2014/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/02/transcript-yeshua-discusses-relationships-on-heavenly-blessings-february-4-2014/</a>.)

Archangel Michael: When I say that your judgment of your sweet self has disappeared, when that is happening you don't hold judgment of others either.

So that danger zone, that destructive annihilation of judgment, ceases. And that does not mean that you do not act out of consideration. Quite the contrary. What it means is you act in greater consideration, in greater tenderness, because what you are sharing is so precious that you would never betray it. ("Archangel Michael: Being, Knowing, and Sharing the Love," channeled by Linda Dillon, October 24, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/10/archangel-michael-being-knowing-and-sharing-the-love/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/10/archangel-michael-being-knowing-and-sharing-the-love/</a>.)

Hilarion: There is much growth taking place within each of you at an accelerated rate and what was true yesterday may not be true today so it is important that you refrain from judgments from the past and try to look at each other with renewed eyes, the eyes of innocence, trust and love.

Be there for each other through thick and thin, for the ways before you require trusted companions who will walk with you no matter what dramas play out in the world within you and around you. Many former paradigms are being shifted by ones such as you, who have been willing to take on the task of transmuting these with Christ love and Christ mind. This requires the understanding that the roles you are each playing are necessary in the greater unfoldment of change in the world.

You are all moving into a time of greater transparency in all your interactions with each other. There can be no deception taking place between individuals as these will be quickly brought to the light of exposure. This is because the energies that now permeate the atmosphere and which you are all assimilating, no longer support duplicity in any form and all will be held to the light of truth. (Hilarion, November 24, 2013.)

#### What is happening to our hearts?

Jesus: Your hearts have exploded. They have not merely expanded, they have doubled and quadrupled, and grown at the speed of Love. And you say to me, Yeshi what does that mean? And it means your capacity to be the Love, to engage in Love, to share in Love, has grown in ways that previously were simply not there. ("Transcript: Yeshua Discusses Relationships on Heavenly Blessings," channeled by Linda Dillon, February 4, 2014, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/02/transcript-yeshua-discusses-relationships-on-heavenly-blessings-february-4-2014/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/02/transcript-yeshua-discusses-relationships-on-heavenly-blessings-february-4-2014/</a>.)

Divine Mother: Love will sweep you and the planet, and in many ways, dear heart, that is Ascension. Because what it also does is implode greater consciousness. You do not live in the old realm. Is there more? Yes. But yes, that is the way that you move forward. It is the way that you experience.

And it does sweep you away. That is what I mean by the surrender and the bliss. And, make no mistake about it, you do leave your body. And you inhabit your body.

You explode and you feel all the energies of the universe. And then, because you are becoming attuned to that feeling, that ecstasy, it steps down, and then you anchor it within your expanded field.

But each time you do the connection, it expands you more and more and more, and your capacity to love, to create, to do, to be, to connect, more and more and more, until there is no memory, no experience, of separation. It was an illusion. It is a false grid. And it has been the shackles. But it is not real. ("The Divine Mother: You Are Experiencing Love in Ways that You Have Not Known Before," channeled by Linda Dillon, November 14, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/</a>.)

# • How do we realize the heart as the true source of our love through sacred partnership?

Jesus: The realisation comes in the acknowledgement [of] the union of sacred partnership, that you are indeed Cosmic Love, that you are indeed Divine Essence, and that you are loved, not only for your Divine Essence, but for Who You Are.

And not merely for your larger, Integrated Self, which is beautiful, but for the person that You Are, right now, at this point in your Ascension process, in your journey back to the One, that you have been deemed and discerned, not judged, but found magnificent.

[The experience] is a bubbling up, that is bigger than Mount Vesuvius! And it can't, and it shouldn't, and we don't guide you, to control it. Love is infectious. It is absolutely infectious.

And so what changes, and I can speak from personal experience, you don't feel like you are constantly going to the well, to fill up, and then beam out, to fill up, and then to do your sacred work. You finally get it, your well is full and it's inside. ("Transcript: Yeshua Discusses Relationships on Heavenly Blessings," channeled by Linda Dillon, February 4, 2014, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/02/transcript-yeshua-discusses-relationships-on-heavenly-blessings-february-4-2014/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/02/transcript-yeshua-discusses-relationships-on-heavenly-blessings-february-4-2014/</a>.)

Jesus: You are the constant flow, you are the conduit, of personal Love, of Divine Love, of true healing, and this is what the Mother is talking about when she is asking for everybody to fall in love with everybody.

When that is happening, and it is happening, sweet Angels, it changes the world. When you are in love with everybody, because it is contagious, then what happens is you cannot wreak havoc on one another, you cannot go to war against one another. Inside Love, inside this wonderful, bubbling pot on the stove, is peace, is joy, is clarity.

So that is the shift that so many of you are feeling, that going to the well, coming back, going to the well, coming back, fill me up so I can transmit, is shifting. You are realizing you are the well. ("Transcript: Yeshua Discusses Relationships on Heavenly Blessings," channeled by Linda Dillon, February 4, 2014, at http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/02/transcript-yeshua-discusses-relationships-on-heavenly-blessings-february-4-2014/.)

# How can two people be with each other in ways that are fresh, empowering and ennobling?

Archangel Michael: [Practice] laughter. Sweetness, kindness, and consideration - in the very specific sense and in the greatest sense. So you are truly to each other and within yourself not only demonstrating but receiving the blessings of someone who is living the divine qualities.

So anything that is not of the divine qualities, anything that is not of kindness, consideration and love, you say to each other, you have the permission and consideration to say, not in words of

anger, not in words of fear, but in a way that says that doesn't feel to me like love.

So it is not being on high alert, but in a comfort zone, a harmony that is comfortable enough that you can say 'That does not feel right.' The same way that, when you are sharing a bed, you say 'Can you move a little?' And of course you do. And it is in that way that you accommodate each other so that the bodies, minds and spirits can meld and come together.

There is something that is very important, both to [the new couples] and as [they] model and that is honoring and praise. And we don't mean flattery. For you know that flattery is often false.

But praise that says to each other, 'I see you. I see how did that, how you processed that, how you took things into consideration, how you extended yourself to somebody else. I admire that. This is a beautiful thing that you are doing and it reflects the beauty of

So it is not to fall into commonplace. Simply there is acceptance of the wholeness of the other person but there is also the recognition and the speaking of that honoring. (Archangel Michael in a personal reading with Steve Beckow through Linda Dillon, Nov. 19, 2013.)

#### • Sometimes praise can be used to steer a person in a certain direction

Archangel Michael: It has to be selfless praise. It has to be heart-generated and genuine. Because I could say to you, my, that was a wonderful, insightful piece that you have just written, and you could say, I want to please Michael so I will write more like that.

And that would not be my intent. My intent would be to simply acknowledge the effort and the purity that you have put forth. So there is that childlike capacity in human beings to repeat things that give you praise and that is not really the sole purpose of praise.

Because you do not want to simply direct someone in a certain direction and then they forget that they really wanted to go off and explore this whole other sphere. (Archangel Michael in a personal reading with Steve Beckow through Linda Dillon, Nov. 19, 2013.)

# • What are some of the expressions of love?

Archangel Michael: One of the strongest or the ultimate expressions of love, of willingness to not only participate in love but to be the love, is in the sharing. To say that you are love, or are loved, or you love this, that, someone... but [then] you keep it within you, you hoard it - and we do not necessarily mean that in a negative way - sometimes the feeling is so blissful you do not wish to actually take the next step quite yet, in terms of sharing.

The ultimate experience is in this sharing. This is what we speak of when we speak of sacred union and partnership. How can you possibly be in any form of partnership with humanity, with the Star-beings, with us, with any being, if you are not sharing. (Archangel Michael in a personal reading with Steve Beckow, through Linda Dillon, March 13, 2015.)

#### What is the nature of sex in sacred partnership?

Archangel Gabrielle: There has been a great discussion, and we do mean this in the best sense of the word...a great and important, critical, pivotal discussion about the nature of intimacy, about the nature of sacred partnership, about the nature of sex. Because that is part of the gift of being in human form. It is part of the reminder, the spark of ecstasy, of bliss, of being in form. But you cannot even reach that place of unity, of bliss, of true intimacy if you are in discrimination with yourself or with anyone else regarding gender, sexual preference, race, color, creed, social status. ("Transcript: Heavenly Blessings ~ Archangel Gabrielle – I Am Gabrielle and I Am Gabriel," March 24, 2015, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/03/31/transcript-heavenly-blessings-archangel-gabrielle-i-am-gabrielle-and-i-am-gabriel-march-24-2015/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/03/31/transcript-heavenly-blessings-archangel-gabrielle-i-am-gabrielle-and-i-am-gabriel-march-24-2015/</a>.)

Archangel Michael: Yes, there is physical union. And what you are seeing is physical union with yourself as well. But when we are speaking of sacred union, of course the body is part of it. But it expresses in various ways — with yourself, with us, with community. And then there is the sacred, individual partner.

It is the heart connection. It is not simply the ecstasy and bliss of physicality. It is the tenderness. It is the sweetness. And it is a sense of surrender, not surrender of who you are, but the willingness to find that fine balance that we have talked of so many times.

There are times when you give more, and there are times when you receive more. There are times when you may be very certain in an ideation or a belief system, but you open the door a crack to allow your partner's ideas, thoughts, beliefs to enter in and to be given due consideration.

Not that you are under some dictum or requirement to do so, but because you want to know them, you want to understand their experience and their view of this journey called life. And that is physical, it is mental, it is political, it is spiritual. There are no restricted areas.

It is entering into greater telepathic communication. It is understanding the look in the eyes, or the quiet time, or the time to be frivolous, or serious. It is being free to truly and fully, in all the faces that each of you have, to be yourself, and knowing that in being yourself you will still be loved and cherished. ("Archangel Michael: Being, Knowing, and Sharing the Love," channeled by Linda Dillon, October 24, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/10/archangel-michael-being-knowing-and-sharing-the-love/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/10/archangel-michael-being-knowing-and-sharing-the-love/</a>.)Sacred Partnership and Unity Consciousness is the Plan

# • How do you handle separation in sacred partnerships?

Archangel Michael: We have talked to you about having many, many star beings on the planet — not starseeds, star beings, your star friends, your family — on Earth in this moment preparing for the next step. And that has included the separation of sacred partnerships, of unions. But never is there a word of saying, "You can't do that. You can't leave me. I will be so lonely. What will I do?"

No. Because there is the knowing that even in that separation, to do the mission, the telepathic and the heart connection does not fade in the slightest. If anything, it is strengthened, because that is what is drawn upon. And it endures, and it is solid and it is nourishing. And there is a knowing that nothing, nothing, can interfere with that love, with that soul commitment that has been made to join together in this mission and purpose.

Now, previously, most human beings did not understand that. There were exceptions in terms of religious mission, but the only other true example has been akin and related to war — "Well, you must go off to war, and I will continue to love you." But that in itself is an aberration.

So, you are learning how to extend your energy field to each other, to dance in the ethers and tap dance on the Earth together, physically, mentally, spiritually, emotionally, not always as mirrors or twins, but as points of conjunction on your mutual grid that you are sharing. ("Archangel Michael: I See You! I Love You! I Will Engage, Nov. 8, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/</a>.)

Jesus: When we knew that my time was coming to conclusion, my Mary wanted in many ways to simply come with me. It is often this way, when you are truly in sacred partnership. You even see it now, how people will die close to one another. ("Jesus: You are Love. It is All You Have Ever Been," channeled by Linda Dillon, December 18, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/12/jesus-you-are-love-it-is-all-you-have-ever-been/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/12/jesus-you-are-love-it-is-all-you-have-ever-been/</a>.)

# **What Sacred Partnership Contributes**

# • Sacred partnership seems to multiply my energy and effectiveness.

Jesus: When you join with your sacred partner, it is not just times two. In our world, in our reality, we tend to deal more with squaring, than multiplication. But what is happening is a squaring, a squaring of the energy. ("Transcript: Yeshua Discusses Relationships on Heavenly Blessings," channeled by Linda Dillon, February 4, 2014, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/02/transcript-yeshua-discusses-relationships-on-heavenly-blessings-february-4-2014/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/02/transcript-yeshua-discusses-relationships-on-heavenly-blessings-february-4-2014/</a>.)

Archangel Michael: It is that amplification. It is the house of mirrors. It is the house of magnification. So let us be very clear: it is the house of joy. ...

What it does ... you have always – well, for a very long time – you have had this saying and it has variations in different cultures, but it is the same idea: "That where two or more are gathered". But it is really where two are gathered the miraculous happens. Not "can happen" – it happens, period.

And it happens and it's happening whether we're physically together or not. I feel that.

AAM: That is correct because it is the energy merge that is the most important. It is the heart connection, and that is what you are learning, what your Star brothers and sisters and other Masters in other dimensions and realms have known always. Once the heart connection is there,

the telepathic connection is there; the emotional connection is there; the mental connection is there.

So the physical – is it enjoyable? Of course. And that will come to pass as you both jump into the river and see where the next island is. But, no, it is not geographically defined. It is not what we have heard humans say "Well, I can't be in relationship with this person I madly love because they are in a different state." This is very peculiar!

So now you have learned the Universe is your playground, and you are choosing where you want to play.

But first and foremost, you are choosing that you want to play. ... Dear Heart, this is the shift. ("Transcript: Archangel Michael Discusses False Grids on Heavenly Blessings. December 10, 2013" at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/12/transcript-archangel-michael-discusses-false-grids-on-heavenly-blessings-december-10-2013/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/12/transcript-archangel-michael-discusses-false-grids-on-heavenly-blessings-december-10-2013/</a>.)

#### Sacred partnership is sweet

Archangel Michael: [Sacred partnership] is the closest reflection that you are going to have to being fully Home.

And it is sweet. Now does that mean that there will never be any difference of perspective, of opinion, because you are in this shift and growth? You see differences in vision or perspective, perception, you have often interpreted as leading to conflict. From our perspective it leads to creativity.

So when you are not in a defensive mode of feeling "If someone does not agree with me, that means that I am less than", you have this conjoining and this discussion of differences that leads to expansion and creativity and new ideas and new inspirations and new creations – concrete and thought – of how things can progress.

And there is not this sense of urgency. Is there a sense of desire to simply allow it to transform and happen? Yes. But there is not this sense of what I would call desperation, that we have need to turn the river around and make it go where we want it to go. You are more willing in the new reality to simply jump in, go with the current, and see where it takes you.

There is a wonderful sense of openness and adventure and willingness to experiment with the new, with the unknown, because you feel safe. You feel safe in the knowingness that only Love is real and Love does not harm. Love does not dishonor or disrespect. It creates that womb in which the new can grow. ("Transcript: Archangel Michael Discusses False Grids on Heavenly Blessings. December 10, 2013" at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/12/transcript-archangel-michael-discusses-false-grids-on-heavenly-blessings-december-10-2013/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/12/transcript-archangel-michael-discusses-false-grids-on-heavenly-blessings-december-10-2013/</a>.)

Archangel Michael: Never before have we heard such a consistent plea and prayer from the human collective as to be in the unity of sacred union, of partnership, with one another.

This is a grand opening, because it is an opening of the heart, to say, "I am ready to love" —not just to have a love affair, not simply to love something or other, but to truly commit and to be in union, because that becomes and is a reflection of union with One.

So, we want you, human beings of Earth and far beyond, we ask you, we invite you, always you think of our help and calling our help, which we are glad to respond to, as coming down to Earth. Now, answer our call and come and join us in play and change this planet and far beyond.

We can help with this shift. We want you to begin to experience it. Be with us as we are with you. Be with the Mother the way she is with you, the Father, with the ascended masters. This is a different form of unity and community, but it is just as joyous, just as profound. (Archangel Michael in "Archangels Michael and Gabrielle on the Angelic Realm: Hour with an Angel Transcript, March 26, 2012," at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/ascension-as-of-2012/what-role-are-the-angels-playing/archangels-michael-and-gabrielle-on-the-angelic-realm-hour-with-an-angel-transcript-march-26-2012/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/ascension-as-of-2012/what-role-are-the-angels-playing/archangels-michael-and-gabrielle-on-the-angelic-realm-hour-with-an-angel-transcript-march-26-2012/</a>.)

#### • Will Sacred Partnership Interfere with My Mission?

Divine Mother: Let us also speak about those of you who say, "Well, you know, I have been in love, but it interfered with my mission and purpose." You have a human expression on Earth. It is, Pppshah! That is utter nonsense!

Yes, I speak bluntly today, as your Mother. Dear hearts, your mission and purpose is to be, to know and to experience love. Everything else emanates, grows, is fertilized by that. If you are not having the knowing, the joy, the bliss of love, then you are not on purpose.

Many of you have devoted your lives — I'm not talking years, I'm talking lives — knowingly and unknowingly, you have committed to me, eon after eon, to this mission and purpose of love. And it has many facets and expressions. But never — never! — do I ask you to enslave yourself to work that does not include love. ("The Divine Mother: You Are Experiencing Love in Ways that You Have Not Known Before," channeled by Linda Dillon, November 14, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/</a>.)Heart Openings

# Sacred Partnership with the Company of Heaven

# How are we in sacred partnership with the Company of Heaven?

Serapis Bey: There has been much discussion in the past several years with many of us and the Archangels, about the nature of sacred partnership, sacred union. And repeatedly we have said to you that we are in sacred partnership. Very few of you have the time or have taken the time or have the inclination or have sought out the insight to truly know what this means. ("Transcript ~ Master of the Ascension Ray Serapis Bey on AHWAA: A Tsunami of One, May 31, 2016," at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2016/06/18/transcript-master-ascension-ray-serapis-bey-ahwaa-tsunami-one-may-31-2016/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2016/06/18/transcript-master-ascension-ray-serapis-bey-ahwaa-tsunami-one-may-31-2016/</a>.)

Sanat Kumara: In the last, can we say, fifty years of the human experience the frequency has been constantly upgraded, with the last couple of years – several years really – being a very strong intensification of the energies that are available. So what was unknown and yes, done to and for you, is no longer the case.

Because it is being done with you. And this is the indicator not only of your growth and spiritual evolution and maturity, but that you are in sacred partnership with us. Yes, you are in sacred partnership with one another as well. But you are also in partnership with us. And because this partnership has reached a level of conscious awareness then we ask you to step forward and to participate rather than to be the student. You are the intern. ("Transcript: Sanat Kumara on the Sacred Law of Dispensation," channeled by Linda Dillon, October 29, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/10/transcript-sanat-kumara-on-the-sacred-law-of-dispensation-october-29-2013/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/10/transcript-sanat-kumara-on-the-sacred-law-of-dispensation-october-29-2013/</a>.)

Sanat Kumara: What has happened in this, and we have begun by saying this today – much of your yearning for freedom, for peace, for clarity, for love, for sacred partnership – to use your words, beloved friend: for 'a world that works for everyone.' It is not just the yearning and desire. You are already co-constructing with us what you are calling the new domain. So it is not as arduous a task...in fact it is a joyful task. And it is already underway. ("Transcript: Sanat Kumara ~ Ascension: Your New Tomorrow, Right Now ~ September 17, 2015," at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/09/20/transcript-sanat-kumara-ascension-your-new-tomorrow-right-now-sept-17-2015/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/09/20/transcript-sanat-kumara-ascension-your-new-tomorrow-right-now-sept-17-2015/</a>.)

Sanat Kumara: Part of our sacred partnership, our sacred union, which is why I am glad to speak today, is mutuality. It is that unity and unification of energy, not merely what you think of as consciousness but of every aspect of your being, the kingdoms, and of Gaia. So, it is important, in the evolution of this sacred union that we are now sharing, that you understand us as much as we say we understand you. ("Transcript: Sanat Kumara – We Override Those who Want to Hurt by Anchoring Greater Peace Within – Part 2/2," February 25, 2015, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/02/25/transcript-sanat-kumara-override-want-hurt-anchoring-greater-peace-within-part-22/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/02/25/transcript-sanat-kumara-override-want-hurt-anchoring-greater-peace-within-part-22/</a>.)

Archangel Michael: I come to enter into service, in the sacred partnership with thee as we are both servants of the Mother in the anchoring of peace now upon sweet Gaia. We join together now in this fulfillment of the Mother's Plan and each of our (human and celestial) plans within that Plan.

You are fully conjoined in this sacred purpose with me now. That I know. ...

It is on this occasion in our sacred partnership and friendship as family, as One with humanity that you anchor Peace upon the planet now. ... as I speak to you, I speak to everyone upon sweet Gaia and far beyond. ...

So we disintegrate [hostilities?] and we disintegrate [them] by saying:

Enough! Enough of this foolishness. Enough of this energy that does not serve anyone and more particularly, it does not serve anyone who is involved.

Not those who die and are maimed and cower in fear or blood-lust on the battlefield, not those who fuel the machinery of war, not those who believe this is wielding power and certainly not those who live in bombed-out houses. Not those who wonder if their father will beat them or their mother will live through another night of violence, not those that are imprisoned and tortured daily.

This serves no one. ...

When we are in sacred union in this way, there is no chance of not fulfilling the dream, of not anchoring in physical reality what is yearned for from the depths of each of your hearts. Let us join in the victory of Love and in the celebration of Love....

We will do this heart in heart, arm in arm, will in will, in alignment with the Mother/Father One.

We are together and we will anchor Peace on Earth and then, let the doors, the dams and everything else break loose. It is time for Nova Earth, not as a dream, not as a concept, not as a context. ("Archangel Michael: I Come To Thee in Sacred Partnership to Anchor Peace," Feb. 8, 2015, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/02/08/archangel-michael-come-thee-sacred-partnership-anchor-peace/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/02/08/archangel-michael-come-thee-sacred-partnership-anchor-peace/</a>.)

Ashira: Thousands of years ago – not seventy years ago, not a hundred years ago, we have been in sacred partnership for a long, long time – for thousands and thousands of years we walked the Earth during the time of Atlantis – we were best friends. And that time – the renewal of that friendship, of our kinship – is not ten thousand years hence, is not seventy years hence – it is now. Right now. ("Transcript: Heavenly Blessings ~ Commander Ashira with an Update. March 11, 2014," at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/03/15/transcript-heavenly-blessings-commander-ashira-with-an-update-march-11-2014/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/03/15/transcript-heavenly-blessings-commander-ashira-with-an-update-march-11-2014/</a>.)

Archangel Michael: What you are bringing, through a series of events, is the gift of grace, the gift of love, the adherence of your judicial system, of your systems of fairness, with universal law.

All of this is underway. So take heart. Do not look to a single moment in time, but see the dominos and see the chain, the ripple effect. And where does it start? My sweet brothers and sisters, it starts with you.

And that is why I have said this day we are upping the ante; because the responsibility lies not only with us; it lies with the masters on the ground as well.

This is a sacred partnership that we have formed and entered before time. ("Archangel Michael: Expect Miracles - Part 2 The Event and the Chaotic Node," channeled by Linda Dillon, August 5, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/08/archangel-michael-expect-miracles-part-2-the-event-and-the-chaotic-node/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/08/archangel-michael-expect-miracles-part-2-the-event-and-the-chaotic-node/</a>.)

Divine Mother: My beloveds, so often I have said to thee, "We are in sacred union," so there is nothing - no part of my being, of my energy - that I do not joyously share with thee. Now, do I

temper it? Do I adjust the frequency so that it is able in the physical reality, not merely the esoteric, so you are able to integrate it and then to go forth, further and further? Yes.

I adjust every attunement, every gift I bestow upon thee. Is the intensity with which I proceed with these attunements, with this rising of frequency at this moment of my 'new times' stronger than ever? Yes. But it is stronger, sweet angels, because you are capable, you can integrate, you can anchor what is being sent to thee, what I am placing in you, in all of your fields, in all of your direction. ("The Divine Mother via Linda Dillon: Reaching New Heights," May 18, 2015, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/05/18/divine-mother-via-linda-dillon-reaching-new-heights/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/05/18/divine-mother-via-linda-dillon-reaching-new-heights/</a>.)

#### • How do the celestials assist the Plan of sacred union?

Archangel Michael: There are many things that we bring forth. Sometimes it is slightly hidden. Sometimes it's a bit of a puzzle. Sometimes it is not immediately clear and other times it is crystal clear and it is presented on a silver platter arranged amongst the roses.

And we will present these types of things, this variety of things, of situations, opportunities, growth patterns, etc. to humanity time and time again.

Too often, far too often, the offering is not accepted or picked up. So when I tease you and I say the horse has already left the stable, I am saying to both of you that it is a gift not only to you but to us when the offering, when the opportunity, when the growth potential is seen, accepted, acted upon, nurtured and taken up. And you have done this.

Now does this mean, my beloved friends, that there will never be any issues or conflict or disagreements? Of course there will be. That is part of the growth pattern. But is there also extraordinary potential for joy, for soaring, for expansion, for a deepening of the knowledge and the wisdom of who you are, in service to the Mother/Father One? Yes, the opportunity is extraordinary. (Archangel Michael in a personal reading with Steve Beckow through Linda Dillon, Sept. 30, 2015.)

Archangel Uriel: What we are doing is we are deepening – and we are being vocal about it – our sacred partnership, our sacred union, and we are walking with you.

Sometimes you will even see us and that is a joy and a gift to us! It is what our future holds. It is you being able to see and talk and be with us, and be aware of it. So I will give you that hint! ("Transcript ~ Archangel Uriel On Divine Authority, May 16, 2017," Channeled by Linda Dillon, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/05/21/transcript-archangel-uriel-on-divine-authority-heavenly-blessings-may-16-2017/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/05/21/transcript-archangel-uriel-on-divine-authority-heavenly-blessings-may-16-2017/</a>.)

# • How do you conduct relationships?

Ashira: Your question is – and this has come up in several different ways – is whether we procreate ... and we do! We have children, and we also have in our population, what you would think of as – we would call – mature ... you might think of as elderly, but we do not have the

same aging process that you have, so it is not that people look old, but there comes a time when people decide for one reason or another, that they wish to take elongated breaks or to bring their attention to something else rather than simply their shipboard duties, and that is certainly accommodated.

When we procreate it is through 'conjoining', and I am not trying to be prudish here because many of you think, "Well, how do they do it?" Do you think I do not know? Let us say that we have the equipment, but to truly have – and you have touched upon it – Sacred Union is a meeting of the Souls, and this is what you are truly beginning to experience in your own evolution on Earth. Before, you used to think – I do not mean you, sweet One – but you collectively often felt that Tantra was the highest form of prolonged union, or heightened ecstasy and union. Take it twenty-two steps further – it is a union of the heart, the mind, the body – and the Soul.

And when you are in that form of Union – not only is it profound joy – it can sustain you for thousands of years. When you join with another like this – and that is what we do – the bond very rarely can or would be severed. ("Transcript: Heavenly Blessings ~ Commander Ashira on Galactic Life, March 18, 2014," at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/03/21/transcript-heavenly-blessings-commander-ashira-on-galactic-life-march-18-2014/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/03/21/transcript-heavenly-blessings-commander-ashira-on-galactic-life-march-18-2014/</a>.)

Sanat Kumara: You have created a modicum of peace within and without, upon the planet that is stellar and I use that word very specifically to refer to how this is bringing you closer, in sacred union and partnership with your star brothers and sisters. You have done this. ("Transcript: Sanat Kumara – We Override Those who Want to Hurt by Anchoring Greater Peace Within – Part 2/2," February 25, 2015, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/02/25/transcript-sanat-kumara-override-want-hurt-anchoring-greater-peace-within-part-22/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2015/02/25/transcript-sanat-kumara-override-want-hurt-anchoring-greater-peace-within-part-22/</a>.)

#### **How do We Find Our Sacred Partner?**

# How do I know if sacred union is right for me?

Archangel Michael: What we are asking you to do is to listen to your hearts. And if your heart is yearning, yes, we are coordinating it! It is a gift from the Mother. It is the gift of sacred union.

First, the union with yourself, the union with the Divine, and the union with your partner. For some of you, because your personality — we do not wish to destroy delightful personalities! — so, for some of you it is on meet-up sites, or meet-up occasions.

But when you feel the urge to go and do something, then do so! Do not say, "Well, that's ridiculous. I've done this before a million times and nothing ever happened." Or do not say, "I've never done this before. I'm not going to start now."

No! Listen to your heart. You are being divinely guided and inspired. You have asked us for the tools. Well, this is one of them.

Now, there will be many, what you would think of as simply synchronicities and meetings. For those of you who are aware and open to it, that is how it occurs. And it is occurring every single moment, all over your planet. Because you have said "Yes" to love.

Many times you have said to me, "Michael, how will we get 6, 7 billion people to ascend?" And I say to you, through love, through freedom, and through the desire to travel together. So, yes. Do not avoid each other. Engage as you see fit, and please, your guides, your guardian angels are working to bring you to your lover. Yes, your lover!

You all have choices, but some are more perfect than others, and this is the time of perfection and freedom. ("Archangel Michael: I See You! I Love You! I Will Engage, Nov. 8, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/</a>.)

Archangel Michael: Yes, this rainbow collective, you are finding each other at the speed of light and the speed of love. ("Archangel Michael: I See You! I Love You! I Will Engage, Nov. 8, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/notes-from-archangel-michaels-discussion-of-sacred-partnership/</a>.)

#### • How shall we handle the fear that may come up in sacred partnership?

Divine Mother: The reason I speak of this level of divine union is because it is then replicated in your human unions as well. So often we see situations — we do not say this in a critical way — where there is still a whisper of fear. If I give my heart, my soul, if I share the essence and truth of who I am, what if I am not loved? What if the love is not returned? What if I am rejected? (The Divine Mother: My Desire is that Every Being on the Planet Falls in Love," channeled by Linda Dillon, Sept. 26, 2014, <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/10/03/divine-mother-my-desire-is-that-every-being-on-the-planet-falls-in-love">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/10/03/divine-mother-my-desire-is-that-every-being-on-the-planet-falls-in-love</a>.)

Divine Mother: Acknowledge the fear. When I have spoken earlier of these false obstacles that most beings can and do raise at some point, to push love away, when the fear arises, look at it, know it for what it is, that it is simply an internal mechanism of the old, as real as you are; honor it the way you honor yourself; be honest about it with your sacred partner, so that they are understanding of what is occurring.

Because what happens with these situations is that it often will fuel and trigger feelings of rejection and fear in the other person. So if you can just treat it as, "I think I'm getting a cold," and then you can quickly take some spiritual vitamin C.... So, address it, honor it, embrace it. See it for what it is.

It is nothing more than a stray thread in the fractured tapestry of your heart. It is nothing more than a wisp of smoke that comes and goes. You do not need to inhale it and choke yourselves. And then, give it to me.("The Divine Mother: You Are Experiencing Love in Ways that You Have Not Known Before," channeled by Linda Dillon, November 14, 2013, at <a href="http://">http://</a>

goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/.)

Archangel Michael: Betrayal, both on and off planet, has been a theme for eons.

So, entering into union is this feeling that you won't be betrayed if you are revealed. And it is something that grows. ("Archangel Michael: Being, Knowing, and Sharing the Love," channeled by Linda Dillon, October 24, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/10/archangel-michael-being-knowing-and-sharing-the-love/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/10/archangel-michael-being-knowing-and-sharing-the-love/</a>.)

And whether you are male or female in your masculine self, tell them, you will support them, you will protect them. They can lean on you because you love them, and you love what this represents. ("Archangel Gabrielle: This is the Longest War in Human History," channeled by Linda Dillon, March 6, 2014, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/03/archangel-gabrielle-this-is-the-longest-war-in-human-history/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/03/archangel-gabrielle-this-is-the-longest-war-in-human-history/</a>.)

#### • I haven't met anyone to be in sacred partnership with.

St. Germaine: Well, Dear Heart, have you entered into sacred union with your plants, with your stones, with your crystals, with the trees, with the sidewalk, with the air, with the sky, with the water? There is so much. When you change the air and water – and remember I have taught you – take my Violet Flame and write 'Love' in the air, write 'Love' in the water and then send it out. ("Transcript: Heavenly Blessings - St. Germaine with an Update, Aired July 8, 2014," channeled by Linda Dillon, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/07/14/transcript-heavenly-blessings-st-germaine-with-an-update-july-8-2014/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/07/14/transcript-heavenly-blessings-st-germaine-with-an-update-july-8-2014/</a>.")

Archangel Michael: The call has gone forth for those of you who remember; those of you who were there in the beginning to reunite in the physical in order to awaken to your own magnificence and heritage, and to reconnect with your brothers and sisters, the whales and dolphins. There is a reunion in the higher realms, but just as important, there are many grand reunions taking place on your planet.

You are being reunited with many precious members of your soul family, some of your intimate soul mates, and groups with whom you have journeyed from the beginning of time, and with whom you have had many wondrous experiences. Know that these reunions are gifts that you have earned, an opportunity to share, support and enjoy the harmony and beauty of your compatible soul companions. ("Archangel Michael: Celebrating A Spiritual Reunion," channelled through Ronna Herman, March 1, 2014, at <a href="http://www.ronnastar.com/messages-aam/latest.html">http://www.ronnastar.com/messages-aam/latest.html</a>.)

# How do we find our sacred partner?

St. Germaine: I cannot say that patience has ever been my strong suit, and yet that is what I guide you. It is not to say, "Well this doesn't work for me," or "I was promised," or "I am longing." You don't want to be in a state - you do want to be in a state of expectation - but not in

a negative way. You do not want to be in a state of lack, because you lack nothing, so you have to remain in that balance of the totality of Who You Are and - like you, Suzi - very happy to be Who You Are, where you are, and content, in the peaceful sense of balance, of being where you are. And then allow it to come forth.

If you are calling, if you are beckoning, it will come. It truly is that simple. ("Transcript: Heavenly Blessings ~ St. Germaine on Relationships, February 11, 2014," at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/02/transcript-heavenly-blessings-st-germaine-on-relationships-february-11-2014/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2014/02/transcript-heavenly-blessings-st-germaine-on-relationships-february-11-2014/</a>.)

Divine Mother: It begins with your sacred self. Do you think that I am penetrating your heart, your mind, your mental body, your entire field, and the entire field of the space between the spaces, the entire field of Gaia and far beyond, and that I am not able to assist you with details and wherewithal?

Where do you begin? You begin with desire. You begin with a dream. You begin with not the idea, but the deep, heartfelt — because this is your core — the desire to engage.

Now I speak to you as Mother. When you say to me that you cannot proceed because of this or that circumstance, then what you are doing, unconsciously, my children, is you are putting up the barriers.

And what you are truly doing is you are saying to me, "I don't believe that I am worthy. I don't believe that I am worthy and deserving that you are going to attend to me adequately so that, first, I can love and cherish myself, and recognize my divinity, so that I am free to expose myself — yes, that "etheric nakedness" that Michael has spoken of and that I am asking all of you to do!

You put up these barriers because you are frightened. You say, "It cannot happen fast." And I am asking you, why not? What is your reason? And give those false illusions to me, give them to your friends, give them to your guides, give them to your star brothers and sisters.

You can say, "I am placing rationality aside, because when I am honest, when I place the fear aside, all I want — all I want! — all I desire is love, is to be seen and known and cherished. And in that, it gives me the strength, the trust and the faith to go forward and create."

So, when you find yourself saying, "How?" let it go. I do not reveal all the details of the plan. There is no human computer... not even your star brothers have adequate technology for all the details of the plan. And within that, the journey, the journey back to us begins with you saying yes. ("The Divine Mother: You Are Experiencing Love in Ways that You Have Not Known Before," channeled by Linda Dillon, November 14, 2013, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/the-divine-mother-you-are-experiencing-love-in-ways-that-you-have-not-known-before/</a>

Sanat Kumara: When you are working with the Law of Attraction, you are pulling the energy, the codes. Now you may have – let us use the practical example of a soul partner, of a sacred union, which is the theme of humanity right now, and yes, we are speaking a great deal about it – you may have a vision of what that looks like and that is fine for using the Law of Attraction for what you are pulling unto your sacred self.

But what we are saying is that part of the Law of Attraction inside that delivery system of your belongings is what we would refer to as the recognition factor. So you need to understand and recognize with your heart, with your heart consciousness, and then with your entire field, what it is that you are looking for. ("Heavenly Blessings: Sanat Kumara on the Sacred Law of Attraction and Repulsion," channeled by Linda Dillon, November 12, 2013 at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/transcript-sanat-kumara-on-the-sacred-law-of-attraction-and-repulsion-november-12-2013/">https://goldenageofgaia.com/2013/11/transcript-sanat-kumara-on-the-sacred-law-of-attraction-and-repulsion-november-12-2013/</a>.)

# • What you are describing comes close to setting the intention.

Archangel Michael: That is correct. And that is where you are doing it. It is in the creation formula in alignment with Universal Law. ... You set your intention - whether it is by a chant or a prayer or thought or a deeply-held belief - ... even when you are screaming at God, you are setting your intention.

What is that based on? The hope.

The intention is actually heard and responded to. So it is in the expression of intention and hope that the beginning of the co-creation – the conjoining of the sacred partnership - begins.

Well, if that's the case, Lord, then talk to us more, please, about how we do this. In our morning meditation do we set our intention? How do we work this Divine process?

AAM: Morning, noon and night and in between. (Archangel Michael in "Transcript ~ Archangel Michael: Peace is Love, May 11, 2017," Channeled by Linda Dillon, at <a href="http://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/05/21/transcript-archangel-michael-peace-is-love-may-11-2017/">http://goldenageofgaia.com/2017/05/21/transcript-archangel-michael-peace-is-love-may-11-2017/</a>